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Overview and Key Performance Indicators

Financial Overview:

~ Gross profit
2015: £47.5m (2014: £45.7m)

Earnings Before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortisation (EBiTDA)
2015: £10.7m (2014: £9.8m)

Profit before tax
2015: £6.8m (2014: £5.5m)

Diluted EPS
2015: 14.86p (2014: 11.78p)

Proposed Full Year Dividend Per Share
8p in 2015 (2014: 4.8p) '

Proposed Final Dividend
4.5pin 2015 (20]4:,2'7‘))

Key Performance Indicators:

No. of Stores
2015:189,2014:191,2013: 194, 2012: 186, 2011: 160

Pledge Book : ,
Up 1.3% to £39.0m in 2015, 2014: £38.5m, 2013: £44.1m, 2012: £51.6m, 2011: £46.6m

[

Redemption of Annual Lending %
2015: 83.0%, 2014: 82.0%, 2013: 77.8%, 2012: 75.6%, 2011: 75.3% ¢

This is the actual percentage of lending in each year which was redeemed or renewed, the 2015 figure is an estimate
based on recent trend and early performance.

Retail Sales )
2015:£29.5m, 2014: £30.9m, 2013: £24.9m, 2012: £20.1m, 2011: £20.0m

Retail Margin '
2015:35.0%,2014: 34.6%, 2013: 39.8%, 2012: 49.0%,.2011: 49.2%

. Gold Purchase Margin <
" 2015:15.1%, 2014: 17.9%, 2013: 19.5%, 2012:23.3%, 2011: 31.4%
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Overview and Key Performance Indicators (continued)

Operational Highlights:

Growth in Personal Loans with the loanbook increasing 35.5% from £3.1m to £4.2m.

Buyback volume more than doubles from £2.9m to £6.0m
FX gross profits increase 75% to £1.4m (2014: £0.8m)

Service Performance:

- Customer Satisfaction Survey

During 2015 and 2014 we conducted an online customer satisfaction survey where customers rate.us from 1 to 10 on
. questions grouped in each area, we received 3,996 responses in 2015 (2014: 4,967) the average scores were:

2015

Knowledge 9.63

. Professionalism 9.67
Satisfaction ©= = - 9.60

2014

9.59-

9.63
9.55

~

“H&T provides a range of simple and accessible financial products tailored for a customer
base which has limited access to, or is excluded from, the traditional banking and finance

sector”
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Chairman’s Statement

We have seen a year of steady progress against a backdrop of volatile commodity prices including gold and difficult
trading conditions in the sector. We have a robust business that remains resilient and is rigorous in its response to the
regulatory environment and changing consumer behaviour.

Introduction

The UK economy has improved over the past year and we have seen a halt in the decline in our pledge book with some
worthwhile growth in other product lines, notably Foreign Exchange, Personal Loans and Buyback. A number of
initiatives have been launched which are still in the proving period; we will expand and develop those that are
successful over coming months.

Financial Performance

The Group delivered profit after tax of £5.4m (2014: £4.3m) and diluted earnings per share of 14.86 pence (2014:.
11.78 pence). Subject to shareholder approval a final dividend of 4.5 pence per ordinary share (2014: 2.7 pence) will
be paid on 3 June 2016 to those shareholders on the register at the close of business on 6 May 2016. This will bring
the full year dividend to 8 pence per ordinary share (2014: 4.8 pence).

The Group’s plan to improve its balance sheet strength while maintaining the pawnbroking loanbook has been
successful with a net debt reduction of 78.4% to £2.1m (31 December 2014: £9.7m).
Regulation

The regulation of Consumer Credit moved from the Office of Fair Trading (OFT) to the Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) on 1 April 2014. The Group obtained authorisation from the FCA on 11 February 2016 and we welcome the
higher standards that this change will bring to our sector.

Strategy

We continue to develop our products aimed at those customers who need a simple and straightforward loan, either
secured or unsecured. We are introducing a more disciplined approach to the retailing of jewellery, and the ways in
which we promote our consumer finance products over mobile applications.

We have reduced further the debt in the business and at the same time increased the potential funding to enable the
business to seize the opportunities that will be presented by a changing market.

Prospects

Continuing high levels of consumer debt and the pressures on mainstream lenders create new opportunities in our
market. The technologies that are evolving in the retail space will enable us to make better use of our loan centre,
jewellery centre, and the store network, alongside the continuing development of our on-line services.

On behalf of the Board and our shareholders I would like to thank everyone at H&T for the hard work and dedication
. over the last year.

%@ /7%/ oo

Peter D McNamara

Chairman
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The business at a glance

As at 31 December 2015, H&T was the largest pawnbroking business in the UK by size of pledge book:

H&T has existed in some form since the late 1800s and over the years has built or acquired some of the oldest and
largest pawnbrokers in the UK. Indeed the store in Edinburgh has operated from the same building for more than 150
years serving the same community.

On 8 May 2006 H&T floated on the AIM Market (“AIM”) providing the Group with access to new sources of finance
and allowing the provision of equity-based incentivisation to employees. Since then H&T has continued its
development by adding new products and services and expanding the store network by 120 stores to 189 at
31 December 2015. ‘

H&T operates in a fast moving, competitive environment and will continue to succeed by focussing on customer needs,
the development and retention of staff and the development of existing and new products together with expansion in
locations.

Pawnbroking

A pawnbroking loan is secured on an item of value with a term of up to six months. H&T values the item(s) based on
weight and the precious metal or stones used in its manufacture. The customer agrees on a loan amount and enters into
a consumer credit agreement. The agreement is for a period of six months and the customer can redeem the goods at
any point during this time providing that they repay the original loan amount plus any interest due. At the end of the
contract, they also have the option to extend the loan for a further six months. If the customer chooses not to redeem '
or renew the loan, H&T then ta!ces action to.dispose of the goods.

Jewellery Retail

H&T offer a unique range of new and second-hand jewellery and watches sourced from our pledge book, purchased
over the counter or purchased from suppliers. All H&T’s jewellery is professionally cleaned, restored and valued at
the Group’s refurbishment centre in Kent before being re-distributed for sale at stores across the country. All of H&T’s
staff are trained to a high standard to help customers choose individual pieces to suit their requirements. ‘

Gold Purchasing

Gold purchasing is a simple way for customers to use their unwanted gold to raise some cash. The process is
straightforward with the store assessing the items, agreeing a price with the customer and purchasing the goods for
_ cash on the spot. Customers can also sell watches and diamonds to H&T which sets us apart from other providers in
the market. '

Personal Loans

Personal Loans are a simple and innovative way for customers to obtain an unsecured loan of up to £2,000. They offer
complete flexibility on the length of loan and regular repayments, depending on the personal circumstances of each
customer. Before issuing a loan we establish the customer’s identity, confirm their income and employment and
complete an affordability assessment. If approved then the customer enters into a consumer credit loan agreement and
we will collect the repayments on the dates agreed with the customer.

Buyback

Increasingly, a younger generation of customers are seeking the opportunity to raise cash from electronic items such
as phones, tablets, laptops and game consoles. To take advantage of this new asset class, H&T has developed its
Buyback offer. Customers can sell their electronic items to H&T for cash and buy the item back within 31 days. H&T
restrict the types of item purchased to current models of the most popular items.
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The business at a glance (contlnued)

Cheque Cashing

Cheque cashing is a service that allows customers to get cash for their cheques.in a few mmutes rather than banking
the cheque. Most are wage cheques, although other types such as personal, lottery, building society and Giro cheques
are considered. Customers use H&T to speed up the cheque clearance (some building societies can take almost two
weeks to clear a cheque) or to avoid banking the cheque into an overdrawn account. Customers are required to provide

- proof of identity and address in order to use the service.

Prepaid Debit Card

A pre-paid debit card is an ideal way for customers to have the functionality of a Mastercard without the associated
credit, giving them the freedom to shop online, over the phone or in store. As there is no loan or credit involved the
application process is simple and the acceptance rate is 100%. Customers leave the store with an ATM only card and
the personalised Mastercard arrives in the post shortly after. Cash can then be loaded to the card at thousands of

locations across the UK, including any H&T store or Post Office branch. '

Western Union

Every year millions of people worldwide trust Western Union to send money within minutes to family, friends or
colleagues in other countries. Since H&T launched Western Union in 2012 it has increased transactlon numbers to
around 10,000 per month and introduced a new customer base to H&T.

Foreign Exchange

H&T offer a foreign exchange service at highly competitive rates and with no commission charges, further establishing
one of our core strengths of offering great value to the customer. Not only does offering this additional service make
currency exchange easier for our customers, but we’re also broadening our appeal to a new audience.
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What is pawnbroking ?

Pawnbroking is quite simply a loan secured on an item of value (“the pledge™). Traditionally pawnbrokers would
accept almost anything of value in order to secure the loan. The H&T pawnbroking offer is mainly based on Jewellery
as it is compact, high worth and can be valued and if necessary resold relatively easily.

How does it work?

The customer brings in the item(s) of value to the store and is asked to give an indication of how much they want to
borrow. This is done in order to establish how realistic the customer’s expectation is, as the high margins charged by
the high street jewellers can give an inflated perception of the value of the goods. The store staff then use a combination
of their expertise and training, together with the point of sale system to détermine if there is adequate security for the
loan. Assuming that there is, the customer and H&T then entér into a credit agreement. This is a contract for six months
and carries interest of 2.0% to 9.99% per month. The rate charged is dependent on local competition and the size of
the loan. :

During the contract the customer can:

. ‘Redeem the pledge. This means they pay H&T the value of the loan (whether in full or by part payments), plus
the interest accrued to date; or

. Renew the pledge. This means they pay H&T the interest only and a new loan agreement is issued for a further .
six months.

Approximately five months after the date of the loan we will write to the customer explaining that the contract is almost -
due and reminding them of the final date to redeem. We write again once the contract is expired to give the customer
another opportunity to redeem or renew their pledge.

If the customer does not redeem or renew then we have to attempt to realise the value of the pledge to repay the loan.
The regulations set out a different treatment for pledges over £75 and those £75 and under. ‘

. Over £75: These pledges are sent to public auction with a reserve price. H&T is entitled to retain no more than
the value at auction. Any part payments made agamst the loan or the surplus, if greater than the value of part
payments, is repaid to the customer.

. £75 and under: These pledges become the property of H&T immediately; the rules relatmg to the surplus do .
not apply due to the lower value of the items concerned.

Regardless of the outcome H&T does not pursue the customer in the rare circumstances when there is a shortfall
between the amount due under the agreement and the amount recovered when the item is sold. Therefore if the customer
is unable to redeem there will be no further consequences and their credit rating is unaffected.

¢

As Good as Gold

For some, lendmg money can be a risky business, but not for H&T. The loan is secured on gold, precious stones or;
watches (over 99% of our pawnbroking business) and that security is left in our possession for the duration of the
contract. If the loan forfeits, then the collateral can be easily liquidated, in aImost all cases fully recovering the amount
lent.
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What is pawnbroking ? (continued)

Valuations, how H&T manage the process

A pawnbroker advances money secured on items of value. Therefore it is vital that we can determine what those items
are worth to ensure adequate security, whilst also being able to give the customer what they want.

1. H&T’s pledge book is almost entifely gold and diamond set jewellery, as those items are relatively easy to value
and in the event of default they can be sold either through the retail'window or as a commodity.

2. Our staff ask the customer how much they would like to borrow and perform a visual examination of the item.
Using the weight and metal type we now have a good idea of what the item is worth based on our general
lending guidelines.

3. If we can meet the customer’s expectations then the item is tested with a range of acids to determine the metal
type and carat, while diamonds are verified using electronic testing equipment.

4. The customer details and a full description of the item are entered to the computer system which calculates a
range of loan values in accordance with Group policy. A credit agreement is produced and the cash issued to
the customer.
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Our Customers

H&T aim to be the lender of choice for customers with limited access to mainstream credit by being consistently
fair, always being professional, and building a range of products that serve our customer’s changing needs.

Personal service

Our staff realise that each customer has different needs and use our range of products to help them find the right
solution. We believe that the face to face interaction in store is key to building trust and understanding and delivering
genuine, high quality service. ' ‘

Use of funds

An H&T loan or sale of gold will generally be used by our customers to fund day-to-day living expenses. Our services
are utilised to resolve short-term cash flow requirements for both business and household expenditure.

Reéponding to feedback

As in previous years we have seen an overwhelmingly positive response from both new and existing customers around
satisfaction. Customer feedback is something we take seriously and actively encourage. Results of mystery shopper
programmes and online surveys are fed ‘directly to stores aiding them in a continuous loop of feedback and
. improvement. This year we have achieved a positive customer recommendation result of 94% (based on
reviewcentre.com data taken in January 2016).

Customers rate staff knowledge, accessibility and professionalism highly. They praise staff ability to answer questions
clearly and quickly as well as proactively engage with the customer early on to anticipate their needs.

* Gender split :
Male Female
Pawnbroking . 41% 59%
Personal Loans 57% 43%
BuyBack 63% 37%
Age profile .
18-24 25-35 36-44 45-55 ° Over 56
Pawnbroking 7% 25% 23% 26% 19%
Personal Loans . 6% 34% - 23% 25% 12%
BuyBack ' 4 o 17% 39% - 23% 15% 6% -

Customer Feedback

‘All shop staff are friendly and welcoming énd serve you promptly.’ Edinburgh

‘Staff are always very friendly and even managed to remember my name.’ Sutton

‘Friendly and professional, provided an excellent service.” Dudley-

“The assistant was really helpful and friendly. Would recommend others to go to the store.” Eltham

‘“The assistant understood the difficulty of money in this day of age and helped me to see the best way forward.’
Gillingham -

‘I have used the store so many times the staff know my name, so it is a really nice experience to hear them welcome
me by my first name when | go there.” New Addington ‘
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Our People

We are firm believers at H&T that our employees are our single greatest asset, and accordingly we strive to ensure
our workforce constantly feel appreciated and valued.

H&T’s commitment to developmg our people

We continually advance and assist our staff to realise their potential. Our work with Learning and Development ensures
our people are developed to support them in their roles. Throughout 2015 we have continued to build on this offering,
meetlng the needs of the business and our people, this includes:

WorkshopS

" The company’s goal is still to provide the best possible technical and behavioural training to our people, enabling staff
to perform their roles with the upmost efficiency. We have a collection of 11 workshops which include compulsory
training for all staff in compliance, sales and negotiation techniques, health and safety protocols, and also the
identification of diamond stones and high-end watches. In addition to these courses we also provide further classroom
based training on a need driven basis in managerial subjects such as financial and commercial awareness, effective
management of teams, and recruitment best practice.

Management Development Programmes

In 2015 we ran two separate Management Development Programmeé STAR, a 9 month long programme for Store.
Managers looking to develop themselves further; and MDP (Management Development Programme) for aspiring
Deputy Store Managers ]ookmg for preparatlon to Store Manager.

E-Learning

E-learning continues to be a big part of our H&T Academy.blended learning approach. The programme offers more
- than 38 different modules that focus more on the theoretical side of our products and knowledge, leaving the workshops
to tackle the more practical elements. Over the past year our e-learning programme has been instrumental in helping
the company and staff to meet the requirements of the new FCA regulatory regime.

Our workshops begin with the Stair Steps 1-3 programme, which focuses on the fundamentals of the business;
- including a classroom based workshop on sales and negotiation techniques, Introduction to Diamonds, Introduction to
Watches, Buyback and finally Advanced Diamonds.

Stair Steps 4 and 5 offer more managerial and behavioural training and which include workshops such as Intro to
. Management, Managing Your Team More Effectively, Introduction to Training and Coaching and Financial and
Commercial Awareness. -

Reward and Recognition

As well as offering competitive salaries, we are proud to offer a generous benefits package to our employees. This -
includes life assurance for all of our staff members, an Employee Assistance Programme; enhanced sick and holiday
pay; an innovation scheme (successful ideas and suggestions can earn an employee a reward of up to £1000, depending
on the overall benefit to our business); health insurance for management; eye care vouchers and discounts on bicycles
through our cycle to work scheme. All of these are offered in addition to monthly, quarterly and annua] bonuses that
can be achieved dependant on hitting performance targets.
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Our People (contmued)

Your Voice Meetings

Bi-annually, we hold a council-style meeting with a group of employees from a variety of positions within the
company, and geographically from around the country. These meetings allow our staff a forum in which to discuss
suggestions and ideas with senior management. We have found the meetings to be hugely productive and resourceful,
as well as providing us with new innovations from within our organisation,. it also permits us to receive direct feedback :
_on new strategies, or indeed any issues that arise in our stores.

NPA Awards

H&T is proud to announce that in 2015, we won the esteemed “Employer of the- Year” ‘Award at the National
Pawnbroker’s Association (NPA) Awards, demonstratmg H&T's passion for developing and supporting its people to
their full potential.

Progression and Recognition

H&T’s retention strategy encourages its people to seek opportunities in the Company, across stores and head office in
order to enhance their skills. We advertise all available positions weekly to every employee in order to help them in
applying for these positions. 53% of our Deputy Manager and Store Manager roles were filled internally in 2015.

Managers’ Tenure (years of service)
26% of Managers have more than 10 years’ service
69% of Managers have more than S years’ service

87% of Managers have more than 3 years’ service

Full Time/Part Time; Male/Female Ratios

Male Female
Full Time 201 - 475
Part Time ' - 54 321

Total . 255 796
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Our Communities

It is our continued ambition to support local and national charities and organisations. This has continued
throughout 2015 with a year filled with events, fun days and fundraising. -

We have raised thousands of pounds and collected thousands of gifts for a number of organisations, see some examples.
below:

* Easter egg collectlon
In April, we raised £1,000 and collected 5,000 Easter eges for local and natlonal chlldren s charities and hospitals.

Macmillan partnership
In 2015, we launched our Macmillan partnership and commitment to raise enough money to fund a Macmillan nurse
for a year. All H&T stores have embraced this challenge with a range of activities, mcludmg

- The Big Slim: a summer challenge to get fit and raise money resulted in raising over £6,000 for Macmillan

. and over 30 stones in weight lost by store staff
-~ Macmillan Coffee Morning: On 26 September we took part in the World’s Biggest Coffee Mommg, with tea
and cakes in our stores and head office
- Throughout the year there were a range of activities in stores including cake, book and plant sales sporting
' challenges raffles; themed fancy dress days and entertainment events

Christmas collectlons

Throughout December all stores ran a Christmas fundraising campaign, mcludmg collecting a total of 945 gifts for
Mission Christmas, a charity which helps give children living in poverty a chance to enjoy Christmas. Other stores
have collected money, food and presents for local children’s charities and food banks.

1n
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Chief Executive’s Review

The solid performance of our core products and the successful development of new products demonstrates the ability
of the business to adapt to the changing market environment.

INTRODUCTION

H&T have traded well in a challenging market having stabilised our core pawnbroking business whilst also developing
our other revenue lines. Profit before tax for the year increased to £6.8m (2014: £5.5m), an increase of 23.6%,
principally as a result of growth in Personal Loans and Other Services.

Our store estate of 189 stores comprises 150 H&T Pawnbrokers stores and 39 est1897 second hand jewellery retail
stores. During the year we have closed two underperforming H&T Pawnbrokers stores. In light of the current trading
environment a small number of stores are expected to close during 2016.

The Group’s development of Personal Loans, Buyback and FX supports the evolution of our business model to
products with higher growth whilst also reducing our exposure to fluctuations in the gold price. The Group’s online
deve]opment continues with the implementation of a new mobile optimised website, new branding and a simpler
customer journey. This activity has resulted in an improvement in website traffic and the online Personal Loans book
in H2 2015.

THE MARKET

The high street alternative credit market is changing. We estimate that around one third of outlets operated by the major -
" groups have closed since December 2013 as a result of the lower gold price and the higher standards required by the
FCA.

The average gold price in 2015 was £759 per troy 0z (2014: £768), a fall of 1.2% although the monthly averages ranged
from a high of £825 in January 2015 to a low of £712 in December 2015. This reduction during the course of the year
compressed the margins realised from purchasing scrap in particular.

The cost cap on pay day lending was implemented on 2 January 2015 and as expected this led to closures among our
high street competitors.

The cost cap has also assisted our online development as the fees paid to brokers have reduced to a level where we can
now acquire leads in a more cost effective way. This has helped the development of the online Personal Loan book to
£0.3m at 31 December 2015 (2014: £0.1m), with the growth taking place during H2 2015. -

The Group has managed external risks effectively and our financial stability, range of products and oﬁtstanding service
delivery position us to take advantage of these changing market conditions.

OUR STRATEGY

The Group’s strategy is to serve a customer base whose access to mainstream credit is limited and for whom small sum
loans can help get through short term financial challenges. The Group will continue to deliver this strategy by
developing a range of lending products, both secured and unsecured, offered in-store and online.

The development of a strong retail proposition supports our lending and purchasing operations, improves returns and
reduces the Groups exposure to gold price volatility. The continuing development of the est1897 brand could play an
important part of this strategy in the future. .

REGULATION
The Financial Conduct Authority

The regulation of Consumer Credit moved from the Office of Fair Trading (OFT) to the Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) on | April 2014..The Group obtained authorisation from the FCA on 11 February 2016 and we welcome the
higher standards that this change will bring to our sector.

The Group has appointed a head of compliance and established a risk committee comprised of independent non-
executive directors to oversee the Group’s compliance framework. Our non-executive directors have extensive
experience with the regulatory requirements of the FCA and its predecessors and provide the Group with valuable
support and insight into the new regime. .
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Chief Executive’s Review (continued)

e

High cost short term credit interest rate cap

On 2 January 2015 the cost cap on the interest rate and charges that apply to high-cost shon-term credit (HCSTC)
came into effect. They are: .

e amaximum charge of 0.8% per day on the amount borrowed
¢ amaximum of £15 fees on default
e acap on the total costs incurred over the life of the loan of 100% of the amount borrowed .

The definition of HCSTC is broad but provides a specific ‘exemption for pawnbroking and certain other credit products
at present.

The Group is well posmoned for the new regulatory envnronment both in terms of our detailed preparation and the
range of products we offer.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s total gross profits increased to £47.5m (2014: £45.7m) principally as a result of the improvements in the
Pawnbroking Scrap, Personal Loans and Other Services segments.

The development in Personal Loans and Other Services is encouraging as we establish these high growth products in
the store estate, collectively generating an additional £1.8m of gross profits in the year.

Pawnbroking

The pledge book has increased 1.3% to £39.0m (2014: £38.5‘m). During the year the Group has focussed on enabling
our staff to make sound lending decisions to maximise the potential in the market whilst managing financial risk.

The Group’s Pawn Service Charge was unchanged at £28.4m (2014: £28.4m) and now represents 59.9% of Group
gross profit (2014: 62.1%).

The yield on the pledge book has improved to 73.4% (2014: 68.8%) as a result of the improvements in redemption
delivered over recent years. The average monthly redemption of loans issued in 2012 was 75.6%, this has increased to
82.0% for loans issued in 2014 as a result of our high quality lending decisions, customer communication and, where
appropriate, assisting customers into repayment plans for pawnbroking loans. The early redemption performance of
loans issued in 2015 leads us to expect further improvements during the course of the year.

Total lending in 2015 increased 3.9% to £98.2m (20]4 £94.5m), the average lending rate per gram bemg in line with
2014,

The Group implemented a number of initiatives during the year to support the pawnbroking proposition:

1) Continued development of “Expert Eye”, a system which enables high definition magnified images to be sent from
a store to our centre of excellence at the jewellery centre where the images are assessed and with telephone support
the store is able to make a better loan decision

2) Relaunch of the online pawnbroking system to simplify the customer journey via the “We lend on anything”
valuation portal and interaction with the Expert Eye valuation service

3) The development of the website to deliver a mobile optimised application process

The Group remains focussed on pawnbroking as the largest contributor to gross profits. Our continued delivery of
excellent customer service and high quality lending decisions on a wide range of assets positions us well in this
evolving market. :

. Pawnbroking Scrap
Pawnbroking Scrap produced a profit in the year of £0.1m (2014: £0.2m loss).

This result was expected given the relative stability in average gold prices between 2014 and 2015. We would not
expect margins on pawnbroking scrap to return to historical levels as we seek to maintain a competitive proposition on
lending and support the pledge book.
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Chief Executive’s Review (continued)

Retail
Retail sales decreased 4.5% to £29.5m (2014: £30.9m) and gross profit decreased 3.7% to £10.3m (2014: £10.7m). On
a like for like basis direct margin from retail improved 1.3% with the growth coming from the est1897 retail focussed

stores. Retail sales are stated net of margin scheme VAT payable, the cost of which increased in the year by an
estimated £0.7m principally as a result of reduction in retail stocks.

The Group considers a successful retail offering to be a core part of our Group proposition. Pawnbroking and Gold
Purchasing generate significant amounts of saleable jewellery which must be sold. While higher historic gold prices
provided a reasonable return from scrapping gold, this disposition route is not suitable for gemset items or watches.
The ability to sell items rather than scrap them also prov1des a higher return and reduces the Group’s exposure to short
term gold price volatility.

The three standalone Discount Secondhand Jewellery stores have provided a useful forum to test and develop new
inventory lines and display techniques although they have yet to provide a meaningful contribution.

The 36 rebranded Discount Secondhand Jewellery stores have outperformed the core estate, delivering growth in direct
retail margin of 5.8% year on year. The Group has completed a number of trials during the year to ascertain the correct
balance between lending and retail activities in these stores and we expect further improvement in the future.

Gold Purchasing -

During the year the average gold price fell from a high of £825 in January 2015 to a low of £712 in December 2015,
the average for the year was £759 (2014: £768), a fall of 1.2%. This reduction during the course of the year reduces
the margin realised from purchasing scrap and is the principal reason for the reduction in gross profits from purchasing
to £2.3m (2014: £2.4m), a fall of 4.2%.

Followmg several years of decline the market for gold purchasing is now finding a new level. This stabilisation has
allowed a focus on improving margins during H2 2015 which, while improving gross profits, has in turn resulted in a
reduction in volumes during H2 2015. We estimate that the weight of fine gold purchased has reduced approximately
7.1% between 2014 and 2015.

Personal Loans

Personal Loans gross profits increased 33.3% to £2.4m (2014: £1.8m); the loanbook net of provisions at 31 December
2015 was £4.2m (31 December 2014: £3.1m), an increase of 35.5%. The yield on the average monthly loanbook was
68.0% (2014: 69.5%), the slight reduction caused by the growth in the new customer numbers and development of the
online product.

The Group considers the development of the Persona] Loan product in-store and online to be a significant opportunity.
H&T’s personal loan product allows for loans of up to £2,000 over any term of up to two years based on affordability.
Approximately 80% of the loans issued by the Group fell under the definition of high-cost short-term credit (HCSTC)
during 2015 and as such must comply with additional rules under the new FCA regulatory regime.

The Group has positioned the product to be cheaper and more flexible than most comparable loans in the market and
has applied robust affordability assessments including a manual review of each loan application. The Group intends to
reduce the proportion of HCSTC loans over time as we develop lower cost, longer term loans for our customers.

"We expect the in-store focus, new website, improved search engine optimisation, digital marketing and our presence
on price comparison websites to increase volumes during 2016.

Other Services

The Other Services segment has increased 44.4% to £3.9m (2014: £2.7m) principally as a result of the improvéments
in the recently introduced FX and Buyback products.

Buyback has been a particular success as part of the “We buy-anything” proposition as the value purchased increased -
from £2.9m in 2014 to £6.0m in 2015. This improvement was achieved through simplification of the in-store valuation
process using a new computer system and a measured extension to the assets accepted.
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Chief Executive’s Review (continued)

Other Services (continued)

FX also continues to grow with gross profits increasing by 75.0% from £0.8m to £1.4m as the product becomes more
established in the business.

Our continued investment in systems, training and store level point of sale materials will provide further growth as we
establish these rapidly growing products in the business.

PROSPECTS

The demand for small sum, short term cash loans remains strong and by increasing the range of assets it accepts, by
expanding Personal Loans and Other Services both in-store and online we are ideally positioned to capitalise on this

changing marketplace.

Our continued investment in stores, people and systems has provided a strong platform to support growth. Current
trading is in line with management’s expectations for 2016.
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i) Gross profit breakdown
Pawnbroking: : 59.9%
Retail , 21.8%
Gold Purchasing 4.8%
Pawnbroking Scrap : ' 0.3%
" Personal Loans ) 5.0%

Other Services -~ 8.2%

ii) .  Store Development

2009 2010 2011

2012

2013 2014 2015

Acquired - 1 1 6 -3 1 -
New Stores - 17 12 .24 2 s 4 .
Closed - e ; Q) ; (8) o)
186 194 191 189

Estate Total 122 135 160

iii)  End of period sterling gold price (£ per troy o0z)

2009 673.4
2010 897.7
2011 985.1
2012 1,019.7
2013 727.2
2014 7730
12015 7190
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 gross profit increased 3.9% from £45.7m to £47.5m driven by the growth in the
Personal Loans and Other Services segments.

Total direct and administrative expenses increased by 1.0% from £39.5m to £39.9m principally as a result of investment
in staff to support business volumes and new initiatives. The Board considers the continued investment in people and
systems to be vital in repositioning the business to take advantage of the current market conditions.

Finance costs were in line at £0.7m (2014: £0.7m).
Profit before tax increased by £1.3m to £6.8m, up 23.6% from £5.5m in 2014.
CASH FLOW

The Group generated positive cash flow from operating activities of £11.2m (2014: £14.4m). Working capital
movements produced an inflow of £2.2m (2014: £6.2m) in the year with the £4.5m reduction in inventory being
partially offset by the £1.4m growth in the pawnbroking and personal loans loanbooks.

BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2015 the Group had net assets of £94.1m (2014: £90.9m) with period end net debt of £2.1m (2014:
£9.7m) delivering a reduction in gearing to 2.2% (2014: 10.6%) (see note 26).

On 12 February 2016 the Group refinanced the existing facility with Lloyds Bank plc allowing for maximum
borrowings of £30.0m, subject to covenants, at a margin of between 1.75% and 2.75% above LIBOR. At year end
£13.0m was drawn on the facility and the Group was well within the covenants with a net debt to EBITDA ratio of
0.20x and interest to EBITDA ratio of 20.4x. The new facility has a termination date of 30 April 2020.

The combination of low gearing and a secure long term credit facility provides the Group with the ability to make
selective investments in the future while maintaining appropriate headroom.

Investments

During the year the Group completed the acquisition of three pawnbroking loan books for a total consideration of
£0.1m.

Impairment

The reduced gold price has impacted the earnings of the Group and of the stores that have been acquired historically.
The Group performs an annual review of the expected earnings of each acquired store and considers whether the
associated goodwill and other property, plant and equipment are impaired. There was no requirement for impairment
during 2015 (2014: £99k).

Share Price and EPS

At 31 December 2015 the share price was 197.0p (2014: 160.0p) and market capitalisation was £72.6m (2014: £59.0m).
Basic earnings per share was 14.88p (2014: 11.78p), diluted earnings per share was 14.86p (2014: 11.78p) and diluted
net assets per share equated to 260p (2014: 247p).

The Group’s market capitalisation remained below net asset value during the year as the continued pressure on earnings
depressed market confidence. The Board believe that the action taken to stabilise the pledge book, drive alternative
earning streams, control costs and de-risk the balance sheet will build confidence.

ES

Stephen A Fenerty
Finance Director
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Risks and Uncertainties

The Board retains ultimate responsibility for the Group’s risk management framework, including reviewing its
effectiveness. The Board has delegated responsibility for annually reviewing the overall effectiveness of the risk
management programme to the Audit Committee. The internal audit function provides assurance to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the internal-control procedures through completion of the annual internal audit plan,
which takes into account current business risks.

The Group’s risk management framework is embedded in the Group’s management and governance processes and is
overseen by the Board. Risks are identified at both a Board ‘and an operational level, they are assessed and, where
appropriate, individuals within the business are given responsibility for the management of that risk. The Group has in
place formal processes for the identification of new risks or a change to an existing risk. The Risk Committee oversees

a formal periodic review of our assessment of individual risks, mitigating activities and associated remedial actions.

. The table below sets out the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and how we mitigate them. This is not
an exhaustive analysis of all the risks the Group may face as there may be additional risks and uncertainties that are
not currently known_to the Board or have not been included in this section on the basis that they are not considered to
be material. '

Area Description of risk Examples of mitigating activities
Regulatory Loss arising from a breach of existing e  Experienced Board both'in Credit and
Risk regulation or regulatory changes in the FCA regulated businesses

markets within which the Group operates. = | «  Dedicated Internal Audit and

Compliance functions

e  Well-developed procedures, training,
systems and operational controls

¢ Head of Compliance monitors legislative
changes and supports departmental
compliance functions as required

e Expert third-party legal and / or
compliance advice is sought where
necessary .

e  Membership of appropriate trade

N ' associations who assist with both

. regulatory awareness and relationships

Gold Price A significant fall in the gold price impacting | Ensure sufficient headroom on bank

the security of pledge and the revenues from covenants to absorb a reduction in gold
scrap operations. ) price, should it occur, without covenant
breach

Monitoring of gold price at Board level
Annual testing of forecasts sensitised for

. gold price

*  Maintenance of appropriate margin
between pledge value and gold price

e Lending on alternative high value items
Review possible use of hedging
Instruments !

e Focus on increasing redemption rates to
minimise reliance on disposition

e Increase retail sales as a disposition

hedge
Theft and_ Loss.of inventory or pledge ¢ High levels of physical security
Fraud o Insurance for material losses

Systems and procedures to minimise risk
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Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Area

Description of risk

Examples of mitigating activities

Internal theft and fraud

Ensure staff are highly motivated
Avoid lone working to reduce
opportunity '

¢ Internal audit team focused on loss
prevention and other manipulation for
personal gain

e Fair, ethical, compliant and competitive
incentive schemes and other benefits
offered

Reputational
Risk

An event or circumstance could adversely
impact on the group’s reputation, including
adverse publicity from the activities of
legislators, pressure groups and the media.

e  Consider regulatory and reputational
impact of business changes

e  Maintain focus on competitive advantage
of customer service ‘ :
Ensure staff are highly motivated
Ensure high level of compliance in
product and service delivery

e  Ensure price or short term earnings are
not the dominant factor in decision
making
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Risks and Uncertainties (contmued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a number of financial risks including interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
price risk. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of directors,
which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives to manage these risks. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. .

A summary of the principal financial risks is provided below. Further detalled discussion is provided in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. Finance costs have reduced
as a result of lower interest rates and lower loan balances and at present the Board does not consider it necessary to
enter into a hedging arrangement. This position is reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables. The Group’s credit
" risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables, the most significant of which are the pledge book, the Personal
loan book and Cheque Cashing balances. In all cases, exposure on trade and other receivables is spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

The risk attributable to the pledge book is further mmgated due to the presence of security (the customer’s pledges)
which can be easily liquidated in almost all cases fully recovering the amount lent.

The risks attached to the unsecured Personal Loan book are mitigated by the continual monitoring of bad debts and a
possible modification of lending criteria. The Group performs an external credit check prior to lending. Similar
procedures mitigate the risks associated with Cheque Cashing activities: : .

The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for
_impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experlence is evidence of a
- reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows. :

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is considered to be low as funds are held with
financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies to the Group s bankers
as shown below

Moody’s credit rating

Barclays Bank plc . : A2
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc - A3
Lloyds Bank plc Al

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk other than on bank balances of £580,917 (2014: £151,000)
with Royal Bank of Scotland plc, £880,801 with Barclays Bank plc (2014: £3,728,621) and £3,761,106 (2014:
£66,000) with Lloyds Bank plc.

Liquidity risk _
In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future

developments, the Group uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance. At 31 December 2015, the Group
had sufficient headroom on its current borrowings and remains in full compliance with all loan covenants.

Furthermore, the Company will review at the appropriate time, the possibility of raising future equity finance or
refinance existing banking facilities to expand activities. .
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Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Financial risk rhanagem’ent objectives and policies (continued)
Price risk

With regard to the current balance sheet position, the Group is not exposed to price risk, as the majority of its jewellery
and all of its scrap gold is obtained through unredeemed pledges, which have a cost to the Group which is lower than
the retail value. The Group is however exposed to adverse movements in the price of gold in its gold scrap activities
and the value of the pledge collaterals. Should the price of gold drop significantly, the Group can mitigate that risk by
changing its lending policy on pawnbroking pledges or by entering hedging instruments. Currently the Group has no
gold hedge in place, a]though this is reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.

Exchange rate risk

While the Group’s activities are wholly conducted in the Unitéd Kingdom, the Group is impacted by forelgn currency ‘
_exchange rates affecting the gold price exchange from USD to GBP and the revaluation of foreign currency cash
holdings in store. :
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Strategic Report Approval

STRATEGIC REPORT APPROVAL

The Strategic Report incorporates the Overview and Key Performance Indicators, the Chairman’s Statement, the
Chief Executive’s Review, the Finance Director’s Review and the Risks and Uncertainties.

By order of the Board

Company Secretary

2 March 2016
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Directors, Officers and Advisers

Executive Directors

John G Nichols

Chief Executive, 65 :

After an early career in the RAF, John entered the leisure industry with the Rank Organisation where he held several
senior executive positions. John joined H&T as Managing Director in 1997 and subsequently became Chief Executive.
He has been instrumental in developing and implementing the business strategy and delivering growth in stores,
revenues and proﬁtablhty .

Stephen A Fenerty

Finance Director, 42 :

" Stephen trained with KPMG’s banking and finance team and is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, since then he has pursued a variety of management roles in the alternative credit sector. Stephen
joined H&T in March 2005 as Commercial Director before taking on the role as Finance Director in December 2013.
Stephen has direct responsibility for finance, IT, unsecured lending, acquisitions, compliance and credit risk.

Non-Executive Directors

Peter D McNamara

Chairman, 65

Peter spent the majority of his career with Lloyds Bank plc, as chief manager for strateglc planning, mergers and
acquisitions, and then as the managing: director of Personal Banking. He subsequently served as group managing
director of the Alliance & Leicester plc and Chief Executive of Wesleyan Assurance Society, a mutual life insurance
business. In 2002 he left to become Chairman and subsequently executive Chairman of Moneybox plc, the leading
ATM deployer operating in the UK, Germany and the Netherlands, which he led to flotation on AIM.

In 2006 he set up a new ATM business, Notem,achine Ltd and is the CEO.

Malcolm L Berryman, 61

Malcolm is currently a Non-Executive Director at Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust and runs hlS own
consultancy business primarily involved in life and general insurance. Between 1990 and 2005, he was Chief Executive
of two Insurers, Liverpool Victoria and Crown Financial Management. He qualified as an Actuary in 1983.

James F Thornton, 58 _

James Thornton has more than fifteen years of experience in UK financial services organisations, most recently as a
Director at Hannam & Partners, from 2009-2015, and previously as Head of Finance at BAT Industries, Group Deputy
Finance Director and UK Finance Director at Old Mutual plc and Head of Foreign Exchange at IFX plc. James has
also held senior positions with Lord Ashcroft KCMG associated companies — Anne Street Partners and Global Health
Partner plc. James is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants and has a MBA from Harvard Business School.
He is a graduate of Magdalene College, Cambridge University where he obtained a MA (Hons) in Classics and Law.
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Directors, Officers and Advisers (continued)

Registered and Head Office and Advisers

Registered and Head Office
H&T Group plc

Times House

Throwley Way

Sutton :

Surrey

SM1 4AF

Tel: +44 (0) 870 9022 600

Broker and Nominated Adviser
Numis Securities Limited

10 Paternoster Square

London

EC4M 7LT

Legal advisers to the Group
Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP
Adelaide House

London Bridge

London EC4R 9HA

Independent Auditor

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Crawley

United Kingdom

Bankers )
Lloyds Bank plc Barclays Bank plc
25 Gresham St , 1 Churchill Place
London ' London

EC2V 7HN ‘ E14 SHP

Registrars

- Equiniti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing
West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Public relations
Haggie Partners LLP .
4 Sun Court .

66 — 67 Cornhill
London

EC3V 3NB

The Royal Bank of Scotland plcl

2™ Floor, Brunel House
17/27 Station Road
Reading, Berkshire
RG1 1LG
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Corporate Governance

The directors recognise the importance of adopting good corporate governance practices in the best interests of all
shareholders. Although the Company is not required to report on compliance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code (“the Code”) since its shares are traded on the AIM Market, the Company applies the principles of sound
Corporate Governance in the following ways:

Directors
The Board

The Board comprises two executive directors and three non-executive directors. Their biographies appear on page 23.
A review of these shows a range of experience and expertise sufficient to bring independent judgement on issues of
strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct which is vital to the success of the Group. The three non-
executive directors each hold shares as disclosed on page 30. However, because the number of shares held is small,
there is no entitlement to share options for non-executives, and there are no cross directorships between executive and
non-executive directors, the non-executive directors are considered to be independent.

Board meetings

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for the proper management of the Group. A Directors’ responsibilities
statement in respect of the financial statements is set out in this Annual Report on page 35.

The Board meets 10 times during the year. To enable the Board to discharge its duties, all directors receive appropriate .
and timely information. Briefing papers are distributed to all directors in advance of the Board meetings. There is a
formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board which include the determination of strategy, approval of new stores
and acquisitions, approval of budget and major capital expenditure.

At Board meetings, the agenda normally comprises a review of the management financial statements, a CEO review
of operations, a review of new store proposals and potential acquisitions and an update on the progress of the Group’s
other strategic objectives.

The Board meetings in August and March cover the approval of the interim and. preliminary financial results
respectively and the November meeting deals with the approval of the annual budget.

The following committees deal with the specific aspects of the Group’s affairs:
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The members
of the Committee are:

e Malcolm L Berryman (Chairman)
e  Peter D McNamara -
e James F Thornton

The Committee meets at least twice in each year and at such other times as the Chairman of the Committee sees fit.

The Chairman of the Committee is appointed by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination Commlttee The
quorum for the Committee is two .
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)
The duties of the Committee are to:

e determine and agree with the Board the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the Chairman,
executive Directors and any employees that the Board delegates to it;

e within the terms of the agreed policy, determine individual remuneration packages including bonuses,
incentive payments, share options, pension arrangements and any other benefits;

e determine the contractual terms on termination and individual termination payments, ensuring that the duty
of the individual to mitigate loss is fully recognised;

e indetermining individual packages and arrangements, give due regard to the comments.and recommendations
of the Code; ‘

e betold of and be given the chance to advise on any major changes in employee benefit structures in the
Company;

e recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior managers below Board level as
determined;

e agree the policy for authorising claims for expenses from the Chief Executive and from the Chairman of the
Board; and

e recommend an annual report for the Board to put to Shareholders on executive remuneration compliant wnth :
relevant legal and regulatory provisions.

The Committee is authgrised by the Board to:

seek any information it requires from any employee of the Group in order to perform its duties;
be responsible for establishing the selection criteria and then for selecting, appointing and setting the terms
of reference for any remuneration consultants providing advice to the Committee, at the Group’s expense;
and

e  obtain, at the Group’s expense, outside legal or other professmnal advice where necessary in the course of its
activities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent Non Executive Directors of the Company The members of the
Committee are:

- o James F Thornton (Chairman)
e  Malcolm L Berryman
e  Peter D McNamara

The Audit Committee reviews each year the arrangements for safeguarding auditor objectivity and independence. The
Audit Committee reviews the scope, results and cost-effectiveness of internal and external audit, and has delegated
power from the Board to exercise the power from shareholders to agree fees for external auditors. The Audit Committee
is responsible for satisfying itself on the independence and objectivity of external auditors and the independence of
internal auditors. As directed by the Audit Committee, the principal function of the Group’s internal audit team is to
verify the physical presence and control procedures surrounding the cash, pledge and inventory balances within stores
and the Group’s Jewellery Centre. The Committee reviews the operation of internal controls and reports to the Board
on the annual review of the internal control and risk management.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The members of the
Committee are: '

. Malcolm L Berryman (Chairman)
. Peter D McNamara
. James F Thornton
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Committee (continued)

The Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing and reporting fo the Board on:

e the Group’s risk appetite (the extent and categories of risk which the Board regards as acceptable for the
company to bear);

¢ the Group’s risk management and internal controls framework (it’s prmcnples policies, methodologies, systems
processes, procedures and people); and

e in respect of the processes and procedures, the arrangements for the 1dent|ﬁcat|0n assessment, monitoring
management and oversight of risk.

The Committee should rﬁake recommendations to the Board in respect of all risks faced by the Company outside of its
declared risk appetite.

Nomination Committee : -

The Nommatlon Committee comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The members of
the Committee are:

e  Peter D McNamara (Chairman)
e Maicolm L Berryman
e . James F Thornton

The function of the Nomination Committee is to provide a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors to the Board. In carrying out its duties, the Nomination Committee is primarily
responsible for:

identifying and nominating candidates to fill Board vacancies; .

evaluating the structure and composition of the Board with regard to the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience and making recommendations accordingly;

reviewing the time requirements of Non-Executive Directors;

giving full consideration to succession planning; and

reviewing the leadership of the Group.

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for the continuing process
of reviewing the effectiveness of the internal controls. Internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The directors confirm that they have reviewed the effectiveness of the systems
of internal control that have been in operation during the year. The Group has an internal audit function principally for
periodic store visits.

Internal control: financial
The internal control process has been reviewed and its main features are:

e Financial Reporting: there is a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual budget approved by the Board.
Monthly trading results are reported against the corresponding figures for the budget and previous year. The
Board also reviews re-forecasts on a regular basis.

e Capital Expenditure: there is a comprehensive budgeting system for capital expenditure with an annual budget
approved by the Board. The Finance Director authorises individual items of capital expenditure and material
items are also authorised by the Board or CEO.

e Cash flow: an annual cash flow forecast is drawn up and approved by the Board and actual cash flow is
reviewed monthly against this forecast.

o Organisational Structure: a clear organisational structure with defined responsibilities and clear authority levels
has been set.

e Store Audits: a Stores Audit function exists to ensure that Group procedures regarding cash, pledges and stock
handling are being adhered to. The store internal audits are performed biannually.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Internal control: risk management

During the year, the Group had in place formalised procedures to identify evaluate and manage signif cant risks and
to enable management to assess and regularly report to the Board on issues relating to busmess operational, financial,
regulatory and non- complxance risks.

Relations with shareholders

-The Board recognises the 1mportance of communications with shareholders. The Chlef Executive’s Review and the
operational review on pages 12 to 16 include a detailed review of the business and future developments. There is a
regular dlalogue with institutional shareholders including presentations after the Group’s prehmmary announcement
of the year end results and at the half year results.
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal activities and review of the business

The main activities of the Group continue to be pawnbroking, gold purchasing, retail of jewellery, cheque cashing,
unsecured lending and other related services operated through Harvey & Thompson Limited. The principal activity of
the Company is that of a non-trading holding company for Harvey & Thompson Limited and H & T Finance Limited.

A review of the business and its future development (including the information that fulfils the relevant requirements
of section 417 of the Companies Act 2006) is given in the Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive’s Review and
Finance Director’s Review on pages 3, 12-16 and 17.

Dividends

. The directors propose a final dividend of 4.5p (2014: 2.7p) per share subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting .
on 28 April 2016. This proposed dividend, in accordance with 1AS 10 ‘Events after the balance sheet date’ for the
Group, and, FRS 21 ‘Events after the balance sheet date’ for the Company, has not been provided for in the attached
financial statements. During the year, the Company paid the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of
2.7p per share and an interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 of 3.5p per share (2014: 2.1p per share).

Capital structure -

Details of the authorised share capital are shown in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. The company has
one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at general
meetings of the Company. As disclosed in note 27, during the period no new ordinary shares (2014: no new ordinary
shares) of £0.05 each were issued, called up and fully paid as part of the Group’s share option and long term incentive

plans.
The nominal issued share capital as at 31 December 2015 was £1,842,813 (31 December 2014: £1,842,813).

As at 31 January 2016, the company has been notified of the following voting rights by major shareholders of the
Company:

Percentage of

voting rights and

' issued share

_Name of holder capital
Artemis Investment Management , 17.7%
Fidelity Worldwide Investment ‘ 10.0%
Henderson Global Investors . 9.6%
Fidelity Management & Research 8.4%
Close Brothers Asset Management 4.9%
Octopus Investments 3.9%
Directors 3.8%
NBIM 3.5%
Hof Hoomeman'Bankiers 2.6%
River and Mercantile Asset Management 2.2%

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 28. Under these share schemes, there are currently potentially
an additional 1,583,152 shares that will be issued to current option holders at the call of the option holder. Under its
Articles of Association, the Company has authority to allot under these share schemes, for cash, up to a maximum of
3,685,626 ordinary shares without being requnred to offer such securities to all shareholders in accordance with

statutory pre-emption rights.
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Capital structure (continued)

On any date, no option may be granted under any share option scheme or long term incentive plan, if (as a result) the
aggregate nominal value of ordinary shares issued or issuable pursuant to options granted during the previous 10 years
under any share option scheme would exceed 10% of the nominal value of the share capital of the Company in issue
on that date. :

There are no other potentially dilutive equity instruments in the Company in issue at 31 December 2015 or -
31 December 2014. .

No person has any special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.

With regard to the appointment and replacement of directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of Association,
the Companies Acts and related legislation and requires certain directors annually to retire by rotatlon The Articles
themselves may be amended by special resolution of the shareholders.

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company, such
as commercial-contracts, bank loan agreenents, property lease arrangements and employees’ share plans. None of
these are considered to be significant in terms of their likely impact on the business of the Group as a whole.

Furthermore the directors are not aware of any agreements between the Company, or any other Group company, and
its directors or employees that provide for compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a
takeover bid.

Dlrectors and their interests

The directors who served throughout the year and to the date of this report, except where otherwise stated, were as
follows:

Executive
J G Nichols
S A Fenerty

Non-Executive
P D McNamara
M L Berryman
J F Thornton

The directors hold the following notifiable beneficial interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company:

AtlJanuary ~  Acquired Disposed At 31 December
Director Type of share 2015 in the year  of in the year ' 2015
J G Nichols Ordinary Sp shares 1,079,530 - - 1,079,530
S A Fenerty Ordinary Sp shares 305,933 - - 305,933
P D McNamara Ordinary Sp shares 17,351 - - 17,351
M Berryman Ordinary Sp shares 2,000 - - 2,000

J F Thornton Ordinary Sp shares 5,000 - - 5,000
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Directors’ report (continued)
Directors and their interests (continued)

As a result of the Approved and Unapproved Share Option Schemes operated by the Group, the directors have a
beneficial interest in the following options granted over ordinary shares in H & T Group plc:

: " Market
Granted gy o ciseq Forfeited Price on
Atstart  during g5, During  A¢end . Exercise date Date from .
of year the year ‘year theyear — ofveqp price exercised which Expiry
No. No. No. No. No. pence pence exercisable date
J G Nichols . ’
- 2006 Scheme 87,397 - - - - 87,397 182.5p - '8/9/2009  7/9/2016
- 2007 Scheme . 78,390 - - - 78,390 217.5p - 17/5/2010 16/5/2017
-2008 Scheme - 92,293 - - - 92,293 - 175.5p - 15/5/2011 14/5/2018
- 2009 Scheme - 87,628 - - - 87,628 194.0p - 1/5/2012  30/4/2019
- 2010 Scheme 93,686 - Co- - 93,686 245.5p - 20/4/2013  19/4/2020
439,394 - - - 439,394
S A Fenerty ' o . : ,
= 2006 Scheme 51,233 - - - 51,233 182.5p ) - 8/9/2009  7/9/2016
- 2007 Scheme 45,517 - - . - 45,517 217.5p - 17/5/2010 16/5/2017
- 2008 Scheme 59,544 - - - 59,544 175.5p - 15/5/2011 14/5/2018
- 2009 Scheme 61,855 - - - 61,855 194.0p - 1/5/2012  30/4/2019
-2010 Scheme 54,989 - - - 54,989 245.5p " - 20/4/2013  19/4/2020.

273,138 - - - 273,138

No share options were granted to any director in 2013, 2014 and 2015.

The following directors have also a beneficial interest in conditional shares granted as part of the Long Term Incentive
Plan (further details are provided within note 28):

Granted Exercised Forfeited . Date when
At start during during the During Atend Exercise conditional
of year the year year the year of year price grant is
No. No. No. No. No. pence achievable
J G'Nichols , '
-2012LTIP 80,778 - - (80,778) - - 17/4/2015
-2013 LTIP 82,276 - - - 82,276 - 28/3/2016
163,054 - - (80,778) 82,276
S A Fenerty
-2012 LTIP 40,301 - - (40,301) - - 17/4/2015
-2013 LTIP 41,048 - - - 41,048 - 28/3/2016
81,349 - - (40,301) 41,048

At 31 December 2015, the market price of H & T Group plc’s shares was 197p and the range during the year ended
31 December 2015 was 156p — 208p. )
At 31 December 2014, the market price of H & T Group plc’s shares was 160p and the range during the year ended
31 December 2014 was 145p — 188.5p. . _

None of the directors hold any interests in the shares of any other company within the H & T. Group plc group.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the following directors will by rotation be offering
themselves for re-election: ’

M Berryman
J F Thornton
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Directors’ report (continued)

Directors’ indemnities

Under the Company’s articles of association, any director is entitled to be indemnified by the Company (to the extent
permitted by law) against any liability incurred by him in defending proceedings which relate to any acts or omissions
in his capacity as officer of the Company. In addition, the Company maintains insurance for the benefit of the directors
in respect of such matters which it considers to be appropriate. These arrangements were in force throughout the whole

of the current and preceding financial years.

Aggregate directors’ remuneration

The total amounts for directors’ remuneration were as follows:

2015 2014
£ £
Emoluments ) 597,935 585,344
Amounts gained under long term incentive schemes - 72,880
Money purchase pension contributions 42,445 41,439 -
640,380 699,663
Directors’ emoluments and compensation
Fees/Basic  ‘Benefits  Annual 2015 2014
Name of director salary in kind bonuses Total Total
‘ £ £ £ £ £
Executive )
J G Nichols ' 244,061 12,055 - 256,116 252,266
S A Fenerty 180,393 9,709 - 190,102 183,603
Non-executive o !
P D McNamara . 70,568 - - 70,568 69,525
M Berryman : 41,818 - - 41,818 41,200
J F Thornton ' 39,331 - - 39,331 38,750
21,764 - 597,935 585,344

Aggregate emoluments 576,171

Directors’ bonus schemes

Remuneration Committee consider the total remuneration package available to Executive directors in light of market
practice for companies of a similar size and delivering a similar shareholder performance. As part of the total package,
Executive directors are entitled to receive an annual bonus, subject to meeting certain performance conditions. These
performance conditions, the maximum bonus payable and the proportion paid for on-target performance are set by the

Remuneration Committee in advance of each financial year.

The 2015.bonus structure was as follows:

- Executive directors receive a percentage of salary for achieving a minimum target based on Group profit before

tax and personal objectives; and

- For each 1% out-performance to the 'target additional percentages are paid up to a maximum of 35% over the

target. No director can receive a bonus of more than 145% of salary.

There were no Bonuses paid to Directors in relation to 2015.

The 2016 directors’ bonus scheme is the same structure as the 2015 scheme.

In 2015 the Board established a long term bonus plan based on the profit performance of the business over the period
to 2020. The 2015 scheme covers the initial period 2015 — 2017 and provides for a payment of no more than 100% of

the base salary of the director.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Directors’ pension entitlements

Two directors (2014: 2) were members of money purchase schemes during the year. Contributions paid by the company
in respect of such directors were as follows:

2015 ' 2014

£ £

J G Nichols g 24,406 24,045

~ S A Fenerty . : ’ 18,039 17,394

42,445 41,439

Personnel

Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
All employees have contracts of employment with Harvey & Thompson Limited, the trading subsidiary inthe H & T
Group plc group.

Harvey & Thompson Limited maintains a policy of equal opportunities and is committed to ensuring that all
individuals are treated fairly, with respect and are valued.

All employees are incentivised through different bonus schemes. Store managers and management also qualify fof the
approved share option scheme (ASOS) while directors and senior management also qualify for the unapproved.share
option scheme (USOS). The executive directors also qualify for the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). Further details
on share option plans are provided in note 28. . .

" Employee consultation

Consultation with employees or their representatives has continued at all levels, with the aim of ensuring that their
views are taken into account when decisions are made that are likely to affect their interests and that all employees
are aware of the financial and economic performance of their stores, regional areas and of the Group as a whole. This
is achieved through formal and informal meetings, weekly information bulletins, employee surveys, a quarterly
newsletter and every year through a store managers’ conference.

Employment of the disabled

It is the policy of the Group to give full and fair consideration to the employment of disabled persons in jobs suited to
their individual circumstances and, as appropriate, to consider them for recruitment opportunities, career development
and training. Where possible, arrangements are made for the continuing employment of employees who have become
disabled whilst in the Group’s employment

Supplier payment policy

The Group’s policy is to settle terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, ensure
that suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and abide by the terms of payment. Trade payables of the Group
at 31 Decemniber 2015 were equivalent to 30 (2014: 29) days’ purchases based on the average daily amount invoiced
by suppliers during the year.

Charitable and political contributions

During the year the Company and Group made donations to registered local and national charities of £6, 200 (2014:
. £5,500). No political contributions were made during the year (2014: £nil).
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Going concern

The Group delivered profit after tax of £5.4m for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: £4.3m). The Group has
also increased its net assets to £94.1m (2014: £90.9m). The Group’s net debt balance decreased by £7.6m during 2015
highlighting the Group’s ability to manage its working capital use and generate strong cash flows.

The Board has approved a detailed budget for 2016, which indicates surplus cash generated from operations after
accounting for the Group’s forecast levels of capital expenditure. On 12 February 2016 the Group refinanced the
existing facility with Lloyds Bank plc allowing for maximum borrowings of £30.0m, subject to covenants, which is
not due to expire until April 2020. At year end £13.0m was drawn on the facility. This strong balance sheet position
provides a high level of confidence that the Group will be able to repay all liabilities as they fall due during 2016. The
Board is also confident of meeting all covenant tests during the year.

In considering the going concern basis of preparation longer term forecasts are also reviewed by the Board, with the
‘base case’ financial forecasts revealing no inability to meet financial covenants or repay liabilities. Sensitivity analysis
under less favourable scenarios designed to test the point at which the Group will either have insufficient headroom or
breach financial covenants have also been prepared and reviewed. The Board considers the selected scenarios as
remote, and is comfortable that mitigating strategies are available to the Group to offset liquidity constraints.

We believe that the current economic climate should have no significant negative impact to our business model. The
Group offering is principally through secured lending against pledges. The Group policies on pawn lending remain
rigorous and prudent, such that the Group has limited exposure to loss in the event of customers not redeeming their
pledges, due to the value of the pledge collateral held, principally being gold and precious stones. The Group has no
reason to believe that the value will not be maintained in the near future. Further details are provided in note 26.

Based on the above considerations and after reviewing in detail 2016 and Q1 2017 forecasts, the directors have formed
the view that the Group has adequate resources to continue as a going concern for the next 12 months and has prepared
the financial statements on this basis. Principal risks and uncertainties to the Group’s business are discussed in more
detail in the Strategic Report.

Independent auditor and statement of provision of information to the independent auditor

Deloitte LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as auditor and a resolution to reappoint them will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

*(1)  so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware;
and

(2)  the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006.

the Board of Directors
chalf of the Board
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss
of the company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

e  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue
in business. .

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

properly select and apply accounting policies;
present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information; .

e  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial
performance; and .

e  make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company’s
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

o the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole;

e the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face; and

o the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s performance, business model and strategy.

Thig responsibility statement was approved by the Board of directors on 2 March 2016 and is signea on its behalf by.

<

iva\Officer Finance Director
S A Fenerty

2 March 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of H & T Group plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of H&T Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2015 which
comprise the Group statement of comprehensive Income, the Group statement of changes in equity, the Group balance
sheet, the Group cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 33. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union. :

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation

_ of the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to
audit and express an opinion on the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with; the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In.our opinion the Group financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of its profit for the
year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the Group financial statements are prepared is consistent with the Group financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in réspect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company ﬁnanc1al statements of H&T Group plc for the year ended 31
December 2015.

T i

Robert Knight (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Crawley, United Kingdom

2 March 2016
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Group statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Continuing operations: ) . 2015 2014
‘ ' Note £000 £000
Revenue . : 5,6 . 89,244 87,696
Cost of sales . (41,782) (42,019)
Gross profit . ) 6 47,462 45,677
Other direct expenses ‘ ) (31,968) (31,627)
Administrative expenses ' ' : (7,976) (7,833)
Operating profit . - ) i . 7,518 6,217
Investment revenues . 5,10 1 1
Finance costs A 11 679) - (708)
Profit before taxation - 7 6,840 5,510
Tax charge on profit = - . ‘ 12 . (1,462) (1,255)
Profit for the financial year and total comprghensive income A 5,378 4,255
_ 2015 2014
Earnings per share - . _ Pence Pence
Basic ' 13 - 14.88 11.78

Diluted ’ 13 : 14.86 11.78
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Group statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Employee

Share Benefit
Share  premium Trustshares Retained

capital account - reserve earnings Total

Note £°000 -£°000 £000 - £000 £000

At 1 January 2014 ' 1,843 . 25,409 ‘(38) 60,914 88,128
Profit for the financial year ‘ L - - 4,255 4,255
Total income for the financial year : ) - : .- - 4,255 4,255
Share option movenﬁent ' 28 B C- - 246 246
Dividends paid - 14 - - - (1,769) (1,769)
Employee benefit trust shares 28 - - 3 - 3
At 1 January 2015 : ' 1,843 25,409 (35) 63,646 - 90,863
Profit for the financial year » - - - 5,378 5,378
Total incéme for the financial year - o - 5,378 5,378
Share option movement 28 - - - 104 104
Dividends paid =~ T 14 - - - (2,285) . (2,285)
At 31 December 2015 , 1,843 25,409 (35) 66,843 94,060
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Group balance sheet
As at 31 December 2015

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions

Total liabilities

Net assets.

Equity

Share capital

Share premium account

Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to equity holders

Note

15
16
17
24

19

20
20
21

23
22
22

23
25

27

27

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
£000 £000
17,707 17,707
752 1,056
8,138 9,954
542 527
27,139 29,244
24,802 29,271
50,893 49,423
646 229
10,923 8,250
87,264 87,173
114,403 116,417
- (1,925)
(5,482) (6,053)
(645) (328)
(6,127) (8,306)
81,137 78,867
(12,911) (15,758)
(1,305) (1,490)
(14,216) (17,248)
(20,343) (25,554)
94,060 90,863
1,843 1,843
25,409 25,409
(35) (35)
66,843 63,646
94,060 90,863

The financial statements of H&T Group plc, registered number 05188117, were approved by the Board of directors

and authorised for issue on 2 March 2016.
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Group cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
" Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of trade and assets of businesses .

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Dividends paid

Decrease in borrowings
Decrease in Bank overdraft

v

Loan to the Employee Benefit Trust for acquisition of own shares

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

_ Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note
30

14

2015 2014
£2000 £000
11,209 14373
1 1
. - 52 .
(1,207) (1,117)
(120) (469)
(1,326) (1,533)
(2,285) (1,769)
(3,000) (10,000)
(1,925) (1,075)
; 3
(7,210) (12,841)
2,673 0
8,250 8,251
10,923 8,250
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1.

For the year ended 31 December 2015

General information

H & T Group plc is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Acts. The address of
the registered office is given on page 24. The nature of the Group’s operations.and its principal activities are
set out in note 6 and in the Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive Officer’s Reviéw, the Finance Director’s
Review and the Directors’ Report. :

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the prlmary economic

-environment in which the Group operates.

Changes in accounting policies
Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the following new and revised standard and interpretations have been adopted
Amendments to I1AS 19 ’ Employee benefits

None of the new or revised standards that have been adopted affected the amounts reported.in the fi nanc1al
statements.

Standards not affecting the reported results and financial position

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the Group had not applied the following new and

" revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 16 ' ~ Leases
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to 1AS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
o Amortisation -
 Amendments to IAS 16 and 1AS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Amendments to [AS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 Sale or Contribution of Assets between, Disclosure of lnterests
and 1AS 28 in Other Entities and Investor and its Associate or Joint
: Venture
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Annual Iniprovements to lFRSs: Amendments to: IFRS 2 Share-based Payment IFRS 3

2010-2012 Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operating Statements, IFRS
: 13 Fair Value Measurement, IAS 16 Property, Plant and

Equipment, IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures and 1AS 38
Intangible Assets.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs: - Amendments to: IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International

2011-2013 ’ Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 3 Business

. Combinations, IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and IAS 40
Investment Property

Annual lmpro‘vements to IFRSs: Amendments to: IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

2012-2014 _ Discontinued Operations, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, IAS 19 Employee Benefits and 1AS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting -
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H&T Group plc
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2.

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Group in future periods, except that IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and
disclosures of financial instruments and IFRS .15 may have an impact on revenue recognition and related
disclosures. Beyond the information above it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the impact
of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 until a detailed review has been completed. '

IFRS 16 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases, with
the objective of ensuring that lessees and lessors provide relevant information that faithfully represents those
transactions. .

Under IFRS 16 significant changes are introduced to lessee accounting, with the distinction between operating
and finance leases removed and assets and liabilities recognised in respect of all leases (subject to limited
exceptions for short-term leases and leases of low value assets). ~

‘Upon lease commencement a lessee recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. Under the cost model a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment.

. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,

discounted at the rate implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the lessee shall use their incremental borrowing rate. .

Subject to' EU endorsement, IFRS 16 would apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of accounting changes that will arise under IFRS 16. The
changes are expected to have a material 1mpact on the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with The AIM
Rules.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments. :

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year.

Going concern

The directors have, at the time of.approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparmg the financial statements.
Further detail is contained in the Directors Report.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary, or trade and assets previously operated through either sole
partnership in limited companies with no audited financial statements at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill which is recognised as an asset is reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment
is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of comprehensive income and is-not subsequently
reversed.

CGU’s to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of
transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested for impairment
annually as described above.

Intangible assets ,
Intangible assets with a finite useful life are carried at cost less amortisation less impairment losses. Intangible

“assets represent intangibles which have been separately identified under IFRS 3 arising in business

combinations, or .meet the recogmtlon criteria of 1AS 38, “Intanglble Assets”, being principally computer
software assets.

Amortisation of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is calculated using the expected life of
the intangible assets acquired.

Amortisation of other intangible assets (computer software) is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of the asset less its assessed realisable value over its estimated useful life (6 to 8 years).
Property, plant and equipment '

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, at rates calculated to write off the cost, less
estimated residual value of each asset evenly over its expected useful life, as follows:

Short leasehold premises

- Leasehold improvements Shorter of 7 years or life of lease
Computer equipment .

- Computer hardware 3 to S years
Fixtures and fittings ' 10 years
Motor Vehicles ‘ 4 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. \

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial
year end. '

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. For inventory acquired for retail sale the
cost represents the purchase price plus overheads directly related to bringing inventory to its present location
and condition and is measured on a first in first out basis. For inventory arising from unredeemed pledges the
cost represents the amount originally loaned, plus overheads directly related to bringing inventory to its present
location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completlon and costs to be incurred in marketmg, selling and distribution.

Where necessary provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and damaged inventories.
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3.

" Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets

In accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ the Group has classified
its financial assets as ‘loans and receivables’ and financial assets at ‘fair value through profit and loss’.

Loans and receivables .
The principal financial assets included in this measurement category are:

Trade receivables.

Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers in the normal course of business. Trade receivables
include certain amounts, namely pledge receivables and Personal Loan debtors which are interest bearing. The
accrued interest arising on these interest bearing assets is included in prepayments and accrued income using
the effective interest method. All other amounts which are not interest bearing are stated at their nominal value
as reduced by appropriate aliowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts, which are charged to the

' Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at hand and deposits held with banks with original maturities of three
months or less.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Only the Group’s derivative financial instruments are recorded as financial assets at FVTPL. Financial assets
at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet
date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash ﬂows of the mvestment
have been reduced.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the counterparty; or
o default on payments; or : A
. it becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired

, mdwndually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are lmmedlately recognised in profit or loss.

" If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the lmpalrment loss decreases and the decrease can be related

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income to the extent that the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity \

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are cla551ﬁed according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds recelved net of direct
1ssue costs.

F. manc:al liabilities _
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL? or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Only the Group’s derivative financial instruments are recorded as financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. All
other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

-Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. .

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductibR temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. ‘ :

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

" Deferred tax is calculated at the' tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or

the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued) '

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Leases

Leases taken by the Group are assessed individually as to whether they are finance leases or operating leases.
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease rental payments are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The benefit of lease incentives is spread
over the term of the lease.

The Group currently has no finance leases.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet-when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as

a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

All the Group’s premises are leased under operating leases. The majority of the leases include end of lease

rectification clauses which impose certain requirements on the Group to complete repairs and maintenance, or

re-decoration activities if required. The Group provides for both rectification costs and repairs and maintenance
obligations. Rectification costs are provided for on signing the lease and repairs are provided as it becomes
aware of any significant amounts that will be required. . .

Share capital and share premium account
There is one class of shares. When new shares are issued, they are recorded in share capital at their par value.
The excess of the issue price over the par value is recorded in the share premium account.

Incremental external costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are recorded in equnty as a deduction,
net of tax, to the share premium account.

Employee Benefit Trust Shares

Under the terms of the Group Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’) for the directors, the parent Company issued
certain shares to an Employee Benefit Trust, paid for through the issuance of a loan to the Trust from the Group.
The award of shares under the LTIP is conditional upon certain vesting criteria, as outlined in note 28. The fair
value of the awards made is measured under the policy disclosed below for Share Options. -

The Group presents the conditional shares as an adjustment to own equity at the balance sheet date through the
Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve, until the point that the shares are awarded, and cease to be condmonal
awards of shares. :
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services and interest income provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will ﬂew to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognised:

¢ Pawnbroking, or Pawn Service Charge (PSC), comprises interest on pledge book loans, plus auction
profit and loss, less any auction commissions payable and less surplus payable to the customer. Interest
receivable on loans is recognised as interest accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount;

e Retail comprises revenue from retail jewellery sales, with inventory sourced from unredeemed pawn
loans, newly purchased inventory and inventory refurbished from the Group s gold purchasing
operation. All revenue is recognised at the point of sale;

e Pawnbroking Scrap and Gold Purchasing comprises proceeds from gold scrap sales and is recogmsed on
full receipt of sale proceeds;

o Personal Loans comprises income from the Group’s unsecured lending products. Interest receivable on
unsecured loans is recognised as interest accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount; and

e Other financial services comprise revenues from third party cheque cashing, foreign exchange income,
Buyback, prepaid card and other income. The commission receivable on cheque cashing is recognised
at the time of the transaction. Buyback revenue is recognised at the point of sale of the item back to the
customer. Foreign exchange income represents the commission when selling or buying foreign
currencies and is recognised at the point of sale. Any other revenues are recognised on an accruals basis.

The Group recognises interest income arising on secured and unsecured lending within trading revenue rather
than investment revenue on the basis that this represents most accurately the business activities of the Group.

The Group recognises revenue and bad debt expenses (both impairments and movements on allowance
accounts) on pawnbroking, cheque cashing and other financial services on a portfolio approach. The Group
considers that the bad debts arising on the loans and receivables balances are a function of the revenue earned
due to the nature of the activities, and accordingly records the net amount of interest or commissions due and
bad debt expenses within revenue. ' :

Gross profit

Gross profit is stated after charging bad debt expenses and the direct costs of inventory items sold or scrapped
in the year.

Other direct expenses

Other direct expenses comprise all expenses associated with the operation of the various shops and collection
centre of the Group, including premises expenses, such as rent, rates, utilities and insurance, all staff costs and
staff related costs for the relevant employees.

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated before investment income, finance costs, other gains and movement in the fair value
of interest rate swaps.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (cAontinu‘ed)‘
EBITDA

EBITDA is defined as Earnings Before Intere§t, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation. It is calculated by
adding back depreciation and amortisation to the operating profit as follows:

2015 2014

£000 £000

Operating profit ‘ _ 7,518 6,217
Depreciation and amortisation ‘ 3,218 3,470

- Impairment - ' - 99
EBITDA ' . ' 10,736 9,786

The Board considers EBITDA as a key measure of the Group’s financial performance.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme which is contracted into the State Scheme. The
amount charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of pension costs and other
post-retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payable in
the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

Employee share incentive plans-

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees (including directors). These
payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant by use of a Black-Scholes model or a Stochastic model
depending on the vesting conditions attached to each scheme. This fair value cost of equity-settled awards is '
recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of any non market-based vesting conditions. The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. A corresponding credit is recorded in equity.

No cost is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.
Dividends

Dividends are provided for in the period in which they become a binding liability on the Company.
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4.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based ‘on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. .

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect.on the.-amounts recognised in financial statements.

_Revenue recognition

Interest receivable on pawnbrokmg loans is recognised as mterest accrues by reference to the percentage of the
pawn loans that are estimated to be redeemed and the effective interest rate applicable. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount. The estimated future cash receipts are based on the historical cash receipts
experience (the “Pledge Redemption”) of the business which vary from month to month. The Group monitors
the Pledge Redemption on a monthly basis.

The critical judgement is that the Group does not recognise interest income on the pawn loans that are not
expected to be redeemed. The Group recognises income on these loans when the related collateral that supports
the loan is disposed of, through either the scrap or retail operations of the Group. The Group is of the opinion
that the revenue earned on the unredeemed pledges is only realised from the Group perspective at the point at -
which the inventory, or scrap item that the Group obtains from the pledge collateral is disposed of. In arriving
at this treatment, the Group also considers that the transfer value from pawn loans to inventory of the
unredeemed pledge collateral cannot exceed the cost to the Group of the inventory item which is represented
by the underlying loan amount provided on the unredeemed pledge item.

Inventories

The majority of the inventory balance is obtained as a result of default by pawn loan customers. The inventory
is stated at cost to the Group, being the amount initially lent on the pawn loan, plus overheads directly related
to bringing the inventory to its present location and condition.

The critical judgement is that the Group does not allocate any interest that would have been earned on the pawn
loans to the cost of inventory. Accordingly, the profit that arises on the subsequent disposal of the inventory,
through either retail or scrap, includes an ‘element which relates to the appropriation by the Group of collaterals
supporting pawn loans that have a higher market value, than the pawn loan amount.

Dilapidations provision

All the Group’s premises are leased under operating leases. The majority of the leases mclude end of lease
rectification clauses which impose certain requirements on the Group to complete repairs and maintenance, or
re-decoration activities if required. The Group provides for both rectification costs and repairs and maintenance
obligations. Rectification costs are provided for on signing the lease and repairs are provided as it becomes
aware of any significant amounts that will be required. The Group does not provide for amounts where the
potential exposure cannot be reliably measured and accordingly does not anticipate potential repairs and
maintenance on the portfolio of stores. Additionally, the Group maintains the stores to a high standard and
completes any necessary repairs and maintenance on a timely basis, addressing. any events that require
expenditure throughout the lease period as and when required. Such costs are expensed as incurred.
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Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of-assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Pawnbroking loans interest accrual estimation

The Group recognises interest on pawnbroking loans as disclosed in the Critical judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies section above. The pawn loans interest accrual (‘pledge accrual’) is material to the
financial statements and is dependent on the estimate that the Group makes of the expected level of redeemed
pawn Joans. The Group estimates the expected redemptions based on the historical redemption rates achieved.
There is a risk that the actual redemption rate may vary significantly from the historical rate used to estimate
the pledge accrual at the balance sheet date. The Directors assess the pledge accrual estimate made at the prior
balance sheet date annually to determine if the actual redemption differs significantly to the previous estimate.
No significant differences were noted for 2015 or 2014. The sensitivity of the pledge accrual to reasonable
changes in the redemption rate is shown in note 26.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value. The review is conducted annually, in the final quarter of the year. The impairment review is
conducted at the level of each cash generating unit, which for acqulsltlons represents the specific store or stores
acquired.

There was no-impairment loss recorded in the current year (2014: £99,000). The principal assumptions applied
by management in arriving at the value in use of each cash generating unit are as follows:

1. The Group prepares cash flow forecasts over a five year period for each cash generating unit, as disclosed
in note 15. The year one cash flows are derived from the most recent financial budget, the revenue was
reduced by 5% in year 1 and a forecast growth rate applied for years 2 to 5. A constant gold price of
£730 per troy ounce is assumed. A perpetuity is then calculated for periods thereafter.

2. The Group has discounted the cash flows at a pré-tax, risk adjusted rate of 10.26%.

While the impairment review has been conducted based on the best available estimates at the impairment review
date, the Group notes that actual events may vary from management expectation.

Fair value of derivatives

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied. For
derivative financial instruments, assumptions are made based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific
features of the instrument. This requires estimation of the future interest rates, and also the appropriate discount
rate.

Trade receivables provisioning
Trade and other receivables are stated at their nominal amount less expected impairment losses.

The impairment losses on the pledge book only relate to pledges seized by the police, shrinkage and our estimate
of losses on pledges where the loan value exceeds the current market value. The pledge book items seized by
the police are impaired on an item by item basis since the Group tracks the status of each pledge individually.
The shrinkage provision is based on an estimate of the pledge book missing at the reporting date using historical
shrinkage experience. The provision for pledges where loan value exceeds the current market value is calculated
on an item by item basis with an estimate used for the proportion of those items which will ultimately be
disposed of through pawnbroking scrap. '
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Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Trade receivables provisioning (continued)

No other impairment losses are provided on the pledge book since the value of the collaterals is greater than the
pledge book nominal value.

The impairment of a Personal Loan is based on historical loss experience depending on ‘the level of arrears on
an individual account. For arrears of 0.5 months up to one month a third of the remaining balanceis impaired,
for arrears of up to two months two-third of the remaining balance is impaired and for arrears of over two

“months, or where the loani is outstanding beyond the contractual due date, the whole remaining balance IS .

impaired.

With respect to all provisions that are based on estimates, there is a risk that actual losses incurred w:ll vary
significantly from management expectation at the balance sheet date, if historical loss rates are not a good
indicator of the actual credit risk-profile of the year end receivables.

. For further details on the provisions and impairment losses, refer to note 26, which show the amounts recorded

in the period and the sensitivity at the balance sheet date to changes in the key assumptlons with respect to
impairment losses. .

Inventories provisioning

Where necessary provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and damaged inventory or inventory shrinkage.
The provision for obsolete, slow moving and damaged inventory represents the difference between the cost of
the inventory and its market value. The inventory shrinkage provision is based on an estimate of the inventory
missing at the reporting date using historical shrinkage experience. For further details on the provisions for
inventory, refer to note 7.

Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

2015 2014
: £°000 £000

Sales of goods . ‘
Gold purchasing, retail, pawnbroking scrap ) 54,521 .54,839
Interest / commission earned : :
Pawnbroking, cheque cashing and other financial services : 34,723 - 32,857
Group revenue : 89,244 - 87,696
Investment revenues : A ‘ : 1 1
Total Group revenue B h 89,245 87,697

Further analysis of revenue by segment is shown in note 6.
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Revenue (continued)

Included in the above revenues are the following items of income and gains:

2015 2014
£000 £°000
Income )
Interest earned on financial assets not designated at fair value 33,868 32,838
Fees eamned on financial assets not designated at fair value - ' 4,686 3,415

Business and geographical segments
Business segments

For reporting purposes, the Group is currently organised into six segments — Pawnbrokmg, Gold purchasing,
Retail, Scrap, Personal Loans and Other services.

The principal activities by segment are as follows:

Pawnbroking:

Pawnbroking is a loan secured against a collateral (the pledge). In the case of the Group over 99% of the
collateral against which amounts are lent comprises precious metals (predominantly gold), diamonds and
watches. The pawnbroking contract is a six month credit agreement bearing a monthly interest rate of between -
2% and 9.99%. The contract is governed by the terms of the Consumer Credit Act 2008 (previously the

. Consumer Credit Act 2002). If the customer does not redeem the goods by repaying the secured loan before the

end of the contract, the Group is required to dispose of the goods either through public auctions if the value of
the pledge is over £75 (disposal proceeds being reported in this segment) or, if the value of the pledge is £75 or
under, through public auctions or the Retail or Pawnbroking Scrap activities of the Group.

Gold Purchasing:

Jewellery is bought direct from customers through all of the Group’s stores. The transaction is simple with the
store or unit agreeing a price with the customer and purchasing the goods for cash on the spot. Gold Purchasing
revenues comprise proceeds from scrap sales on goods sourced from the Group’s purchasing operations. . -

Retail:

The Group’s retail proposition is primarily gold and jewellery and the majority of the retail sales are forfeited
items from the pawnbroking pledge book or refurbished items from the Group’s gold purchasing operations.
The retail offering is complemented with a small amount of new or second hand jewellery purchased from thlrd
parties by the Group.

Pawnbroking Scrap:

Pawnbroking Scrap comprises all other proceeds from gold scrap sales other than those reported within Gold
Purchasing. The items are either damaged beyond repair, are slow moving or surplus to the Group’s
requirements, and are smelted and sold at the current gold spot price less a small commission.

Personal Loans:

Personal Loans comprises income from the Group’s unsecured lending activities. Interest receivable on
unsecured loans is recognised in turnover on an accruals basis less provision for loans not expected to be
repaid. Personal Loans are subject to bad debt risk which is reflected in the interest rate applied.
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Business segments (continued)

Other Services:
This segment comprises:
e  Third Party Cheque Encashment which is the provision of cash in exchange for a cheque payable to
our customer for a commission fee based on the face value of the cheque.
e Buyback which is a service where items are purchased from customers, typically high end electronics,
and may be bought back up to 31 days later for a fee. . -
e The Foreign Exchange currency service where the Group earns a commission when selling or buying
foreign currencies.
o.  Western Union commission earned on the Group’s money transfer service.
The Prepaid debit card product where the Group earns a commission when selling the card or when
the customer is topping up their card.

Cheque Cashing is subject to bad debt risk which is reflected in the commissions and fees applied,
Further details on each activity are included in the Chief Executive’s Review on-pages 12 to 16.
Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Consolidated

: “Gold Pawnbroking  Personal Other For the year
2015 Pawnbroking Purchasing ~  Retail Scrap Loans Services ended 2015
Revenue . £000 - £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
External sales 28,437 15,260 29,543 N 9,718 2,389 3,897 89,244
Total revenue 28,437 15,260 29,543 9,718 2,389 3,897 89,244
Segment result—

gross profit 28,437 . 2,297 10,326 116 2,389 3,897 . 47,462
Other-direct expenses ' (31,968)

- Administrative expenses . (7,976)
Operating profit ' T 7,518
Investment revenues 1
Finance costs - . ‘ 679
Profit before taxation ' . 6,840
Tax charge on profit (1,462)
Profit for the financial year and total comprehensive income 5,378
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Business and geographical segments (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Consolidated .

Profit for the financial year and total comprehensive income

Gold . Pawnbroking Personal Other  For the year
2014 Pawnbroking Purchasing Retail Scrap Loans Services  ended 2014
Revenue £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
External sales 28,393 13,325 30,894 10,620 -1,780 2,684 87,696 -
Total revenue 28,393 13,325 30,894 10,620 1,780 2,684 87,696
‘Segment result — ' .
gross profit 28,393 2,387 10,677 . (244) 1,780 2,684 45,677
Other direct expenses (31,627)
Administrative expenses - (7,833)
Operating profit 6,217
Investment revenues 1
Finance costs 708
- Profit before taxation 5,510
Tax charge on profit (1,255)
4,255

As disclosed in note 3, Gross profit is stated after charging bad debt expenses and the direct costs of inventory
items sold or scrapped in the period. Other operating expenses of the stores are included in other direct expenses.
The Group is unable to meaningfully allocate the other direct expenses of operating the stores between segments
as the activities are conducted from the same stores, utilising the same assets and staff. The Group is also unable
to meaningfully allocate Group administrative expenses, or financing costs or income between the segments.
Accordingly, the Group is unable to meaningfully disclose an allocation of items included in the Consolidated .
Statement of Comprehensive Income below Gross profit, which represents the reported segment results.

The Group does not apply any inter-segiment charges when items are transferred between the pawnbroking
activity and the retail or scrap activities.
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2015

Other information

Capital additions (*)

Depreciation and
amortisation (*)

Balance sheet

Assets
Segment assets

Unallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

2014

Other information

Capital additions (*)

Depreciation, amortisation
and impairment (*)

Balance sheet

Assets
Segment assets

Unallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Pawn- Unallocated  Consolidated
Pawn- Gold broking  Personal Other assets/  For the year
broking  Purchasing Retail Scrap Loans  Services (liabilities) ended
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000
1,173 1,173
3,218 3,218
44,548 406 24,811 231 4,152 - 74,148
35,864 35,864
" 114,403
. - (634) - - (15) -~ " (849)
(19,494) (19,494)
(20,343)
Pawn- Unallocated  Consolidated
Pawn- Gold broking  Personal Other assets/  For the year
broking Purchasing Retail Scrap Loans Services  (liabilities) ended
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000 - £000 £000 £000 £000
1,007 1,007
3,569 3,569
43,888 473 28,749 278 3,129 - 76,517
35,324 35,324
116,417
- - (640) - - 212) (852) .
(24,702) (24,702)

(25,554)

(*) - The Group cannot meaningfully‘ allocate this information ‘by segment due to the fact that all the’

segments operate from the same stores and the assets in use are common to all segments.
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Business and geographical segments (continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located entirely in the United Kingdom and all sales are within the United Kingdom.
Accordingly, no further geographical segments analysis is presented.

Major customers
Included in revenues arising from Gold Purchasing and Pawnbroking Scrap segments are revenues from the

- Group’s largest customer of £21,214,000 (2014: £21,740,000) and from its second largest customer of

£1,863,000 (2014: £1,314,000), which makes more that 10% of the total revenue. These customers are bullion
houses involved in the processing of the Group’s scrap gold.

Profit before faxétion

Prbﬁt before taxation has been arrived af after charéing: ' 2015 2014
o £000 - £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment reported within:
- Other direct expenses . 2,799 3,012
- Administrative expenses o . = 98 75
Amortisation of intangible assets (reported within Other direct expenses) 321 383
Impairment ' h - ' 99
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment : : | 75 181
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 41,102 41,299
Write downs of inventories recognised as an expense 680 720
~ Staff costs (see note 9) : 20,922 19,883
Impairment loss recognised /(réleased) on pawnbroking financial assets (*) - 138 . 1)
Provision recognised/(revleased) on pawnbroking financial assets ™) . -8 305y
lﬁpairment loss recognised on personal loans financial asgets *) 13,429 2,250
Provision recognised on personal loans financial assets (*) R 342 376
Impairment loss recognised on other services financial assets (*) 292 206
Provision released on other services financial assets (*) . A : (10) )]

(*)  Asdiscussed in note 3, due to the portfolio approach adopted for recognising revenue, these amounts are
recorded against revenue from the related segment to present net revenues as shown in notes 5 and 6.

Although the Group has written off, or provided for some of the financial assets in the current and previous
periods, the Group continues to seek recovery of these assets. For further analysis on the movements in’
allowances, and amounts written off, see note 26. ’
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8. Auditor’s remuneration

The analysis of auditor’s remuneration, exclusive of VAT, is as follows:

Fees payable to the Company s auditor for the audit of the Company S
annual financial statements

Fees payablé to the Company’s auditor for other services to the Group
- The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation

Total audit fees
- Tax services
- Other services

Total non-audit fees

2015 2014
£000 £000 .
45 42
45 45
90 87
13 13
17 -
30 13

The Company and Group audit fees are borne by a subsidie{ry undertaking, Harvey & Thompson Limited.

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be
disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated

basis.

There were no fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of associated pension

schemes.
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9.

Information regarding directors and employees

"~ .Non-executive directors’ emoluments

3 (2014: 3) non-executive directors receive payments for servic_e§ rendered to the H & T Group plc group.
Their emoluments are included in the analysis below.

2015 2014

Directors’ emoluments ) £000 £000
Aggregate emoluments . ' : ) 598 " 585
Amounts gained under long term incentive scheme. ‘ - 73

- Company pension contributions to money purchase schemes - 42 . 41

640 699

All executive directors during the year (2014: all) participated in Harvey & Thompson Limited’s money
purchase pension scheme. In addition, £54,000 (2014: £149,000) was charged to the Consolidated Statement

" of Comprehensive Income in respect of the fair.value of the share options and conditional shares granted to the

directors under the different schemes. None (2014: None) of the directors exercised options over shares in the
Company in the year, None (2014: Two) of the directors were granted shares under the long term incentive
scheme. A

2015 2014
£000 £000
Highest paid director "
‘Aggregate emoluments 256 252

Company pension contributions to money purchase scheme : 24 24

In addition, £27,000 (2014: £75,000) was charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in
respect of the fair value of the share options and conditional shares granted under the different schemes.

2015 2014
. No. No.
Monthly. average number of persons employed (including
directors) ' , ,

Branches ) . A 953 : 907
Administration . 100 94
1,053 ~ 1,001
2015 2014
: '£°000 £000

Staff costs during the year (including directors) .
Wages and salaries : 18,860 17,831
Share option expense (note 28) 104 249
Social security costs . 1,620 - 1,479
Other pension costs ' 338 324
20,922 , 19,883
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9.

10.

Information regarding directors and employees (continued)

All directors and employees are remunerated through a subsidiary Group company. The directors of Harvey &
Thompson Limited, the trading subsidiary, are the key management personnel of the Group, none are female.

Investment revenues

2015 2014
£000 £000
Interest revenue: :
Bank deposits 1 1
‘Investment revenues earned on financial assets (analysed by category of asset) is as follows:
+ 2015 2014
. £000 £000
Loans and receivab]es (including cash and bank balances) 1 I

Interest revenue recognised on pawnbroking and other financial services is reported within turnover for the

reasons discussed in note 3.

Finance costs

2015 2014
£000 £000
Interest on bank loans ) 524 554
Other interest : 2 1
Amortisation of debt issue costs ' 153 153
Total interest expense - 679 708
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12. . .Tax charge on .proﬁ

(a)  Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Current tax

United Kingdom corporation tax charge at 20.3% (20]4 21.5%) -
based on the profit for the year

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Timing differences, origination and reversal
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Effects of change in tax rate

Total deferred tax (note 24)

- Tax charge on profit

(b)  Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

2015 2014
£000 £000
1,549 1,070

(72) (12)

1,477 1,058

21 88
(36) 83

- 26
(15) 197
1,462 1,255

The tax assessed for the year is higher than that resulting from applying a blended standard rate of

corporation tax in the UK of 20.3% (2014: 21.5%). The differences are explained below:

Profit before taxation

Tax charge on profit at standard rate

Effects of: :
Disallowed expenses and non-taxable income
Non-qualifying depreciation
Effect of change in tax rate
" Movement in short term timing differences
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods

Total amount of tax charge

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement and in accordance with IAS 12, the excess of
current and deferred tax over and above the relative related cumulative remuneration expense under
IFRS 2 has been recognised directly in equity. This amounted to a charge to equity in the current period

of £nil (2014: £nil).
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2015 2014
£000 £000
6,840 5,510
1,389 1,185

49) . (63)-
117 100
) 26

13 - (64)
- (108) 71
1,462 1,255
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13,

14.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. ‘

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. With respect to the Group these represent share options and
conditional shares granted to employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the
Company’s ordinary shares during the year.

Reconciliations of the earnings per ordinary share and weighted average number of shares used in the
calculations are set out below:

' Year ended 31 December 2015 Year ended 31 December 2014

Weighted Weighted
, , average Per-share . average Per-share
Earnings number of amount Earnings numberof amount
£000 shares pence £000 shares pence
Earnings per share basic 5,379 36,154,799 ~14.88 . 4,255 36,124,298 11.78

Effect of dilutive securities
Options and conditional shares

34,805 (0.02) - - . N

Earnings per share diluted 5,379 36,189,604 14.86 4,255 36,124,298 11.78
Dividends
2015 2014

£000 £000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period: ’
Final dividend for'the year ended 31 December 2014 of 2.7 pence

(2013 - 2.7) per share 995 995

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 of 3.5 pence » e
(2014 - 2.1p) per share 1,290 ‘ 774
2,285 1,769

Amounts proposed and not recognised:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 of 4 Sp
(2014 =2.7p) per share. ' 1,659 995

The proposéd‘ﬁnal dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and
accordingly, has not been included as a liability in these financial statements.
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15. Goodwill

]

) ' - Goodwill
Goodwill  arising on
arising on trade
purchase of  and asset Total
" subsidiaries purchases  Goodwill
) £000 £000 £000
Cost' and carrying amount . )
At 1 January 2014 _ 14,133 3,605 17,738
Impairment : - @30 (€2))
At 1 January 2015 t 14,133 3,574 17,707
~ At 31 December 2015 : . . 14,133 3,574 17,707
There are no recognised impairment losses at 31 December 2015.
Goodwill acquired in business combinations is allocated as follows: .
2015 2014
£000 - £000
Harvey & Thompson Limited 14,133 14,133
Stores acquired in 2005 213 213
Stores acquired in 2006 553 553
Stores acquired in 2007 ’ : 1,516 1,516
Stores acquired in 2008 : 391 - 391
Stores acquired in 2010 : 19 19
Stores acquired in 2011 ) 48 48
Stores acquired in 2012 679 679
Stores acquired in 2013 , 155 155
Stores acquired in 2014 ‘ : : - -
Stores acquired in 2015 : - . -

17,707 17,707

The Group considers that the CGUs have indefinite useful lives as the Group is a signiﬁéant operator in a well-
established business together with the proven and long term demand for the Group’s services.

The Harvey & Thompson Ltd CGU was created when H & T Group plc acquired Harvey & Thompson Limited
in September 2004. Management is unable to allocate this goodwill by store and accordingly, tests this for
impairment at the subsidiary entity level. All assets acquired after September 2004 are reviewed for impairment
at the related store level. The stores are grouped for financial reporting purposes by year of acquisition to
facilitate presentation and comparability on a year by year basis. Additionally, store performance is monitored
by management based on the year of acquisition as the historic performance of an individual store is linked to
its acquisition date. This approach is reflected in the way management has presented the above CGUs.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired. The impairment review was conducted as described in note 4.
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16. Other intangible assets . )
Customer

. relation-
Software ships Total
£000 £000 £°000
Cost . . .
At 1 January 2014 - L,675 2,446 4,121
Additions : » - 18 18
" At 1 January 2015 . . 1,675 ° - 2,464 4,139
Additions : - 17 17
At 31 December 2015 ' . _ 1,675_ 2,481 4,156
Amortisation A
At 1 January 2014 ) 1,4]0 1,311 2,721
" Charge for the year ’ 4 67 316 383
Impairment : ) Lo 9 9
Impairment reversal ' - (30) 30)
At 1 January 2015 1,477 1,606 3,083
Charge for the year ' 67 254 321
At 31 December 2015 1,544 1,860 3,404
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 ) 131 621 752
At 31 December 2014 : o 198 858 1,056

The customer relationships intangible assets arise from the acquisition of trade and.assets of sole partnerships
or limited companies with no audited financial statements and reflect the repeat business associated with the
pawnbroking and pay day advance industry from existing customers at the acquisition date of the relevant
assets. :

The amortisation period for customer relationship intangible assets is between 6 and 8 years and the
‘amortisation period for software intangible assets is 7 years. These amortisation periods reflect the directors’
best estimate of the estimated useful economic lives of these intangible assets. .
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'17.  Property, plant and equipment .
Short Long

_ Fixtures
leasehold leasehold Motor Computer and
premises premises Vehicles equipment fittings Total -

. £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £°000
Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2014 23,289 211 ' 9 3,897 4,466 31,872
Additions 727 - 13 115 134 989
Disposals (396) - - 20) (36) (452)
At 1 January 2015 23,620 211 22 3,992 4,564 32,409
Additions - 490 - - 463 - 203 1,156
Disposals : (370) - - - (39) 23) (428)
At 31 December 2015 . 23,740 ©211 22 4,420 4,744 33,137
Accumulated

depreciation and

impairment ‘

At 1 January 2014 13,374 66 1 3,369 2,740 19,550
~Charge for the year 2,476 , 25 5 . 230 351 3,087
Disposals . (237) - - . (18) (16) @271)
'Impairment 89 - - - - -89
At 1 January 2015 15,702 91 6 3,581 3,075 22,455
Charge for the year 2,340. 26 5 201 325 2,897
Disposals ©(300) - - 35) (18) (353)
At 31 December 2015 17,742 117 11 3,747 3;382 24,999
. Carrying amount .

At 31 December 2015 .5,998 94 11 _ 673 1,362 8,138
At 31 December 2014 , 7,918 120 16 411 1,489 9,954

Capital commitments for tangible and intangible assets are disclosed in note 32.

64



H&T Group plc
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 :

18.

19.

20.

21,

Subsidiaries’

A list of the investments in subsidiaries, including the name, country of incorporation and proportion of
ownership interest is given in note C to the Company’s separate financial statements.

Inventories : -
‘ : . 2015 2014
‘ £°000 £000
Retail and scrap inventory ’ 24,802 29,271

Of the retail and scrap inventory, approximately 97.22% represents. gold, jewellery and watch items. The
remaining balance is miscellaneous items (mostly electrical goods and art pieces) which were previously held
as pledge collaterals and subsequently forfeited.

Trade and other receivables '
2015 . 2014

£°000 £000
Trade receivables . ' 42,525 40,970
. Other receivables ( 250 217
- Pledge accrued income : : : } 6,255 6,067
Prepayments and other accrued income 1,863 2,169
50,893 49,423

Trade and other receivables are disclosed net of impairment.
Other current assets ' .. 4 A 2015 2014
’ ’ £000 £000
Other current assets . . ' 646 229

Other current assets represent Buyback inventory, where the Company holds items for 31 days in order for
customers to re-purchase their items.

Cash and cash equivalents

2015 - 2014
£000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 10,923 8,250

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Further details on financial instruments, including the associated risks to the Group and allowances for bad and
doubtful debts and fair values, is provided in note 26. '
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22,

23.

‘Trade and other payables

- Trade payables

Other taxation and social security costs
Accruals and deferred income

2015 2014
£000 £2000
1,420 1,505

500 533

3,562. 4,015

5,482 6,053

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs.
Theé average credit period taken for trade purchases is 30 days (2014: 29 days). For most suppliers no interest
is charged on the trade payables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged
on the outstanding balances at various interest rates. The Group has financial risk management policies in place

to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

Current tax liabilities

Borrowings

Secured borrowing at amortised cost

Bank loans and overdrafts

Unamortised issue costs

Total borrowings due for settlement within one year
Long term portion of bank loan

Unamortised issue costs

Amount due for settlement after more than one year

2015 2014
£2000 £000
645 328
2015 2014
£°000 £000
A 1,925
- 1,925
13,000 16,000

(89) (242)
12,911 15,758
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23.

Borrowings (continued)

The Group’s borrowings throughout 2015 were provided by Lloyds Bank pIc under a four year Credit
Agreement signed on 30 January 2013. This facility allowed for maximum borrowings of £50m, with a margin
of between 1.25% and 2.25% dependent on leverage ratios.

This facility was due to expire on 30 January 2017. To remove any near term financing risk the Group has,
post year-end, refinanced the facility with Lloyds Bank plc.

The key terms of the new facility are:

Key Term Description

Total Facility Size £30m
Termination Date 30 April 2020
Utilisation ‘ The facility is available to be drawn down to the full £30m so long as the

Company remains compliant with leverage and interest cover ratios as
stipulated in the Credit Agreement.

Margin The facility has an interest calculation of LIBOR plus a margin of between
1.75% and 2.75%, dependent on ratios as stipulated in the Credit Agreement.

Interest Payable Interest due on the loans is payable at each interest period end.
: Interest amounts outstanding at the year-end are included in accruals.

Fixed Repayments No capital repayments prior to termination date.

Deferred debt issué costs .
There were £153,000 of deferred debt issue costs written off in the period to P&L (2014: £153,000).
Security

The facility is secured by a fixed and floating charge over various assets of the Group.

‘Undrawn borrowing facilities

At 31 December 2015, the Company had avallable £37, 000 000 (2014 £32,075,000) of undrawn committed
borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met. The refinancing has reduced
the available headroom by £20,000, 000 at the point of the refinancing.
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24.

Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior year. .

Property, "Hold over Short term - Share

Plant and capital timing based Derivative

Equipment gain differences payment financial
differences .  £°000 £°000 £ 000 instruments Total
_ £000 £°000 £000
At 1 January 2014 ‘ 30 (142') 703 -133 : - 724
Debit to income (83) - - - - (83)
Debit/(Credit) to equity 200 12 (397) . 71 - (114)
At 1 January 2015 . 147 (130) 306 204 - 527
Prior year adj ustrnerit ' 36 - - ' - .- 36
Debit/(Credit) to income 83 , 4 (13) 95) - @2n
As 31 December 2015 ' 266 . (126) 293 . 109 - 542

Deferred tax assets and liabilities all relate to the same tax Jurlsdlctron and taxable entities, and are expected to
reverse over the same time periods. Accordmgly, these have been offset in the balance sheet.

The Finance (No 2) Act 2015', which provides for reductions in the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to

19% effective from 1 April 2017 and to 18% effective from 1 April 2020, was substantively enacted on 26
October 2015. These rate reductions have been reflected in the ca]culanon of deferred tax at the balance sheet
date.

The closing deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2015 has been calculated at 19% reflecting the tax rate at
which the deferred tax asset is expected to be utilised in future periods.

We estimate that the future rate change to 18% would further reduce our UK deferred tax asset recognised at
31 December 2015 from £542,000 to £513,000. The actual impact will be dependent on our deferred tax position
at that time. .

The utilisation of the deferred tax asset is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the prof’ its arising

from the reversal of existing taxable temporary difference.
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25. Provisions
Provision for

dilapidation

and onerous

leases

£°000

At 1 January 2014 - ) 1,158

Additional provision - v 592

Provision utilised in the year . : ' ' : (260)

"At 1 January 2015 : S E , 1,490
Released provision . . (18)
Provision utilised in the year (167)

At 31 December 2015 , - } : 1,305

The dilapidation provision represents management’s best estimate of the Company’s liability to repair and
maintain certain of the properties contracted under operating lease agreements and settled at the individual
lease end dates. At the reporting date no demand to enforce the dilapidation contractual obligations has been

made by the related property landlords.

Provisions for onerous leases are recognised when the Company believes that the unavoidable costs of meeting
the lease obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under the lease.
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26.

Financial instruments

" Notes to the consolidated financnal statements (contmued)

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities, as defined under 1AS 39, and their estimated fair values are as

fol.lows:

At 31 December 2015

Financial assets

Pawnbroking trade receivables

Cheque cashing trade receivables
Other.financial services trade receivables
Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings due within one year
Borrowings due more than one year

" Net financial assets/(liabilities)

At 31 December 2014

Financial assets

Pawnbroking trade receivables

Cheque cashing trade receivables

Other financial services trade receivables
Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings due more than one year
Borrowings due more than one year

Net financial assets/(liabilities)

Fair value " Financial

through Loans liabilities at Book Fair
profit or and amortised Value value
loss receivables cost total . total

£000 £000 £°000 £000 £000.

; 44,548 - 44,548 45954
- © 4,152 - 4,152 4,152

- 363 - 363 363

- 10,923 - 10,923 10,923

- - (5233)  (5,233)  (5,233)

- - (12,911) A(12,9ll) C(12,911)

- 159,986 (18,144) 41,842 43,248

Fair value Financial

through Loans liabilities at Book Fair

- profit and and amortised Value value
loss receivables cost total total

£°000 £000 £000 £°000 £000

- 43,888 - 43,888 45,698

- 3,129 - 3,129 3,129

- 256 - 256 256

- 8,250 - 8,250 8,250

- - (6,130) (6,130) (6,130)

- - (1,925) (1,925) (1,925)

- - (15,758) (15,758)  (15,758)

- 55,523 (23,813) 31,710 33,520
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26.

Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value .
The assumptions used by the Group to estimate the current fair values are summarised below:

(i) For trade receivables relating to Pawnbroking, the fair value has been calculated by adding:
e The principal outstanding on pawn loans; -
e The interest receivable accrued using the effective interest rate method based on assumed
- redemption; and )
e Assumed scrap profits on the proportion of the Group’s pledge book that is not expected to be
redeemed, i.e. those loans upon which the Group does not recognise interest due to the uncertainty
of recovery: ' '

(ii) Other trade receivables and other assets are considered to have fair values which are the same as their
book values due fo the short period over which they will be recovered. Book values for both cheque
cashing and financial services trade receivables are calculated net of provisions, and hence represent the
Group’s best estimate of recovery values based upon recent debt collections experience.

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents are all held on interest bearing bank accounts are con51dered to have a fair
value the same as their book value. .

(iv) For borrowings and trade and other payables, the book value approximates to fair value because of their
short maturities and interest rates where applicable. None of the trade or other payables are interest
bearing. The borrowings are all held at floating interest rates which approximate market rates, and
accordingly, the book value and fair value are the same. '

The fair value of the pawnbroking trade receivables is determined using a model where the inputs are derived
from historical trends monitored by the Group. This valuation therefore falls within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy in 1AS 39. The fair value of all other financial instruments is equivalent to their book value due to

their short maturities.

Financial risks

The Group monitors and manages the financial risks‘rela'ting to the financial instruments held. The principal
risks include credit risk on financial assets, and liquidity and interest rate risk on financial liability borrowmgs
The key risks are analysed below -

Credit risk
Pawnbroking trade receivables

The Group is exposed to credit risk through customers defaulting on their loans. The key mitigant to this risk
is the requirement for the borrower to provide security (the pledge) in entering a pawnbroking contract. The
security acts to minimise credit risk as a customer’s pledge becomes the property of the pawnbroker on default
of the loan. '

In addition to holding security, the Group further mitigates credit risk by:
1) Applying strict lending criteria to all pawn loans

Pledges are rigorously tested and appropriately valued. In all cases where the Group lending policy is applied,
the value of the pledge items is in excess of the pawn loan.

The Group estimates that the current fair value of the security is equal to the current book value.
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26.

Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Pawnbroking trade receivables (continued)
ii) Seeking to improve redemption ratios:

For existing customers, loan history and repaymeht profiles are factored into the loan making decision. The-
Group has a high customer retention ratio and all customers are offered high customer service levels.

A 1% increase / (decrease) in the Group’s redemption ratio is estimated to impact the pre-tax profit by £53,000
/ (£74,000). This does not account for lost repeat business however, and as such the Group sees more value in
retaining a high redemption ratio.

‘Additionally, the Group is exposed to risk in recovery of the loan amounts, which is considered to be similar

to creditrisk, due to:
(i) assets being pledged as security against loans, which are subsequently seized by the police; and

(i)  assets being pledged as security against loans which are éubsequently lost or stolen, resulting in the
borrower being relieved of the liability to the Group. ’

The legal title that the Group can enforce on these items, and their ongoing security are therefore vital to the
Group to ensure that the credit risk is mitigated to an acceptable level. The Group continually. reviews and
monitors, at both store and at Board level, its internal controls to ensure the adequacy of the pledged items.
The key aspects of this are:

. Appfopriate details are kept on all customers the Group transacts with;

. All pawn contracts comply with the Consumer Credit Act 2006;

. Appropriate physical security measures are in place to protect plédged items; and

. An internal audit department monitors cc;mpl_iance with policies at the Group’s stores.

The Pawnbroking trade receivables are disclosed net of the provision for bad and doubtful debts associated with
these financial assets, including full provision on assets notified to the Group by the police as frozen assets. The
movement in the provision is as follows:

£000
Balance at 1 January 2014 . . 993
Net Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income charge (366)
Written off ) 61
Balance at 31 December 2014 | 688
Net Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income charge . 146
Written off (138)
Balance at 31 December 2015 ’ . 696
The ageing of past due but not impaired receivables is as follows:
2015 2014
£°000 £000
0 - 90 days 6,295 5,949 -
Over 90 days : 2,195 1,773
Total ‘ 8,490 7,722
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26.

Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Pawnbroking trade receivables (continued)

~ The Group has not provided for the £8,490,000 (2014: £7,722,000) contractually overdue receivébles (i.e. loans

where the pawn agreement has terminated but the customer has not redeemed the assets) at the reporting date
since the realisable value of the security held is greater than the carrying value of the pledge loan as disclosed
above. The Group does not start the disposition process of the unredeemed pledges until three months after the
end of the ¢redit agreement since it is commercial practice to allow additional time for the customers to redeem
their pledged items, for an additional fee.

The maximum exposure to credit risk would be £44,548,000 (2014: £43,888 000) being the gross carrymg
amount net of any amounts offset.and any impairment losses.

Other trade recezvables

This class represents amounts recoverable by the Group through recelvables arising from the other financial
services activities it engages in, and is exposed to credit risk through default on the loan amounts for Personal
Loans, or default from the drawer for Third Party Cheque Encashment. On each product the Group employs
appropriate policies to mitigate the credit risk including credit checks, obtaining legal security provided and
appropriate staff recruitment and training policies. The Group monitors the ongoing risk associated with this
class of financial assets through a continual review of bad debts, modifications to the lending policy, and
internal audit activities. In the event of default by the customer, the Group has also developed a debt collection
department to recover any outstanding debt. :

Personal Loans and Other Services receivables are disclosed net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts, an
analysis of which is as follows:

Personal Other )

Loans Services Total

£000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2014 : 651 . 34 - 685
Net Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income charge 2,626 . (1,358) 1,268
Written off o (2,250) 1,351 (899)
Balance at 31 December 2014 © 1,027 27 1,054
Net Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income charge 3,771 ‘ (2,534) 1,237
Written off (3,429) 2,524 -(905)
Balance at 31 December 2015 - o136 17 1,386

Trade receivables not overdue are provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts determined by
reference to past default experience.

" Cash and cash-equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents balance comprises both bank balances and cash floats at the stores. The bank
balances are subject to very limited credit risk as they are held with banking institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies. The cash floats are subject to risks similar to any retailer,
namely of theft or loss by employees or third parties. These risks are mitigated by the security systems, policies
and procedures that the Group operates at each store, the Group recruitment and training policies and the internal
audit function.
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26.

Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
The concentration of net bank balances by counterparty financial institution is as follows:

Credit 2015 " 2014

rating £000 £000

Barclays Bank plc : A2 881 3,729
Lloyds Bank plc : - (Al 3,761 66
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc ] A3 - 581 151
Cash at stores , _ - 5,700 4,304
10,923 ' 8,250

Market risk
Pawnbroking trade receivables

The collateral which protects the Group from credit risk on non-redemption of pawn loans is 99% (2014:99%)
comprised of gold, jewéllery items and watches. The value of gold items held as security is directly linked to
the price of gold. The Group is therefore exposed to adverse movements in the price of gold on the value of
the security that would be attributable for sale in the event of default by the borrower. The Group considers
this risk to be limited for a number of reasons. First of all, the Group applies conservative lending policies in
pawnbroking pledges reflected in the blended margin made on retail sales and scrap gold when contracts forfeit.

The value of gold for our customers is also much greater than the price of gold since jewellery items contain a
retail margin. The Group is also protected due to the short term value of the pawn contract (6 months). In the
event of a significant drop in the price of gold, the Group could mitigate this risk by reducing its lending policy
on pawnbroking pledges, by increasing the proportion of gold sold through retail sales or by entering gold
hedging instruments. Mahagement monitors the gold price on a constant basis.

Considering areas outside of those financial assets defined under IAS 39, the Group is subject to higher degrees
of pricing risk. The price of gold will affect future Group profitability in three key ways:

i) A lower gold price will adversely affect the scrap disposition margins on existing inventory, whether
generated by pledge book forfeits or via the Group’s purchasing operations. While scrap profits will be
impacted immediately, retail margins may be less impacted in the short term.

i) While the Group’s lending and purchasing rates do not track gold price movements in the short term,
any sustained fall in the price of gold is likely to cause lending and purchasmg rates to fall in the longer
term thus potentially reducing future profitability as:

a. the size of the pledge book and associated yield is directly linked to lending rates, and
b. assuming constant disposition margins, absolute dlsposmon profits would decrease as lending
and purchasmg rates decrease

iii) = A lower gold price may reduce the attractiveness of the Group’s gold purchasing operations.

Conversely, a lower gold price may dampen competition as lower returns are available and hence this may assist
in sustaining margins. - ‘
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26.

Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk

Borrowings

The Group has significant borrowings exposing it to liquidity risk in both repayment of borrowings and
availability of finance. In order to mitigate this risk, the Group uses a mixture of short-term and long-term debt
finance with banking institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The
current borrowings are disclosed in detail in note 23, which shows that the Group has arrangements in place
for funding until 2020. At 31 December 2015, the Group also has available £37,000,000 (2014: £32,100,000)
of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met. The
refinancing has reduced the available headroom by £20,000,000 post year-end. This level of headroom is
considered sufficient to finance operations at the current level, and as described in note 23, the Group currently
has a £30m facility which is available to draw upon. Furthermore, as shown in note 30, the business generates -
a'positive cash flow from operating activities and has discretion in its expansion programme should the Group
need to improve short term cash flow.

The Group is in full compliance with all loan covenants. -

" The maturity analysis of the cash flows arising from both current borrowing arrangements that expose the

Group to liquidity risk are as follows:

A 60 days 180
Less than 30to 60 to 180 days to 1-2 2-3 3-5
Payments due by period 30 days days days 1 year years years years Total
' £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2015 ' '

Floating rate borrowings 40 40 138 201 397 397 13,529 14,742

Trade and other payables 1,420 3,813 - - - - - 5,233 -

Total 1,460 3,853 138 201 397 397 13,529 19,975
60 days 180

Less than 30to 60 to 180 days to 1-2 2 -3 Restated

Payments due by period 30 days days days 1 year years - years Total
£°000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £°000

© At 31 December 2014

Floating rate borrowings 43 43 112 266 525 16,525 17,574 .
Trade and other payables 1,505 4,625 . - - - - 6,130
Total : 1,548 4,668 I 266 525 16,525 23,704

The amounts reported above for floating rate borrowings include the principal amount of borrowings as well as
the interest payable on these borrowings. The floating rates used to predict the interest cash flows are based on
the relevant LIBOR yield curve derived from quoted interest rates. The above amounts are contractual,

undiscounted cash flows.
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26. Financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk

Borrowings'

The Group is funded based on a combination of equity and bank borrowings. The bank borrowings are all held
* at floating rates based on LIBOR. Accordingly the Group is exposed to cash flow risk through changes in the
LIBOR rate impacting cash flows.

Analysis is shown below to demonstrate the sensitivity on profitability of a 1% change in LIBOR, subject to

LIBOR being a minimum of 0%. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the

balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A 1.0% increase or decrease is used when reporting

interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
. reasonably possible change in interest rates. ' ‘ '

1.0% decrease 1.0% incréase
in interest rates in interest rates

_ £°000 . £000
At 31 December 2015 : )
Finance costs: gain/(loss) . - 66 . - (130)
Total pre tax impact on profit from gain/(loss) : 66 (130)
Post tax impact on equity gain/(loss) ' 53 (104)
At 31 December 2014 ‘
Finance costs: gain/(loss) . 81 -(160)
Total pre tax impact on profit frombgain/(loss) ’ o 81 (160)
Post tax imﬁaét on equity gain/(loss) o - 63 (126)

Financial Assets

The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk on the financial assets, other than cash and cash
equivalents, as these are lent at fixed rates, which reflect current market rates for similar types of secured or
unsecured lending, and are held at'amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents are exposed to interest rate risk as they are-held at floating rates, although the risk
is not significant as the interest receivable is not significant. ' :
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27.  Share capital

2015 2014 °
£000 £000
Issued and fully paid .
36,856,264 (2014: 36,856,264) ordinary shares of £0.05 each 1,843 1,843

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.
In 2015 and 2014 there were no issue of shares.

Options over shares of the Company are di'sclosed in note 28. Under these share option arrangements, there are .
1,583,978 (2014: 1,585,477) open options over shares.

Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve '

The Group presents these conditional shares as an adjustment to own equity at the balance sheet date through
the Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve, until the point that the shares are awarded, and cease to be
conditional awards of shares. The award of shares under the LTIP is conditional upon certain vesting criteria,
as outlined in note 28.

Movements in this reserve are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 23, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and
retained earnings.

Gearing ratio

Although the Group reviews.its gearing ratio at each reporting date, no specific target has been fixed by
management. The Group’s gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

201 . 2014
Gearing Ratio _ £000 £°000
Debt 13,000 17,925
Cash and cash equivalents : (10,923) (8,250) .
Net debt : 2,077 9,675
Equity 94,060 90,863
Net debt to equity ratio 2.2% 10.6%

Debt is defined as long and short-term borrowings, as detailed in note 23, before unamortised issue costs.

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attributable to eqliity holders of the Company.

. Externally imposed capital requirement

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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28.

Share-based payments

As at 31 December 2015, the Company operated three share award schemes. The charge for the year in respect

- of all schemes was:

2015 2014

£000 £000

A. Approved Share Option Scheme : ' 37 68
B. Unapproved Share Option Scheme o _ 3 3
C. 'Long-term Incentive Plan ‘ ‘ 64 _ 178
104 249

Awards that can be granted under the three schemes total a maximum of 3,685, 626 shares (2014 3,685,626
shares).

A. Approved Share Option Scheme (‘ASOS’)

The Approved Share Option Scheme is a share option scheme approved by HMRC where favourable tax
treatment is received on exercise by the employee. The options may be granted to all management from Shop
Manager to Executive Director level. The Remuneration Committee of the ultimate parent company, H& T
Group plc, sets the performance conditions.

The performance conditions applicable to the options granted in 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 have already
been met. The performance conditions applicable to grants in subsequent years are as follows:

e Options granted in 2011, 2012 and 2013 become exercisable subject to continued emp]oyment
within the Group as at the exercise date.

Early exercise of the options is permitted if an option holder ceases to be employed by reason of death, injury,
disability, retirement or sale of his employing company.

The options outstanding at the year end were as follows:

' Number Earliest date

Exercise price.

Grant date _ Pence of shares of exercise Expiry date
ASOS 2006 September 2006 182.5 26,564 7/09/2009 6/09/2016
~ ASOS 2007 May 2007 ’ 217.5 26,940 16/05/2010  15/05/2017
ASOS 2008 May 2008 175.5 40,351 15/05/2011  14/05/2018
ASOS 2009 April 2009 194.0 57,211 30/04/2012  29/04/2019
ASOS 2010 April 2010 245.5 119,234 19/04/2013  18/04/2020
ASOS 2011 April 2011 298.5 138,776 18/04/2014  17/04/2021
ASOS 2012 March 2012 - 297.0 169,395 29/03/2015  28/03/2022

ASOS 2013 March 2013 292.25 194,539 28/03/2016

27/03/2023

78



H&T Group plc : :
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

28.  Share based payments (continued)
A. Approved Share Option Scheme (‘ASOS’) (continued)
The Group did not issue any share options during 2014 and 2015.

A reconciliation of option movements for the ASOS is set out below:

~ . 2015 2014
Weighted Weighted -

: average average

Number of exercise Number exercise

share price of share price

options (in pence) options  (in pence)

Outstanding at beginning of the year : 774,479 267.5 814,564 268.1

Granted during the year - - oo -

Forfeited during the year (1,469) 294.6 (40,085) 278.5

Exercised during the year : - ‘ - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 773,010 267.5 774,479 267.6

Exercisable at the end of the year : 578,471 259.12 409,076 243.44
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28.  Share based payments (continued)
B. Unapproved Share Option Scheme (‘USOS?)

The Unapproved Sharé Option Scheme is a discretionary option scheme under which the Remuneration
Committee of H & T Group plc may grant options to all Executive Directors and Senior Management of the
Company. The Remuneration Committee of H & T Group plc sets the performance conditions.

Exercise of an option is subject to continued employment over a three year period from the date of the grant.
Early exercise of the options is permitted if an option holder ceases to be employed by reason of death, injury,
disability, retirement or sale of his employing company. ' -

The options outstanding at the year end were as follows:

Exercise
_ ; price Number Earliest date

Grant date © Pence of shares of exercise Expiry date

USOS 2006 September 2006 182.5 126,027 7/09/2009 6/09/2016
USOS 2007 . . ‘May 2007 2175 112,643 16/05/2010 ~ 15/05/2017
USOS 2008 ~ May 2008 175.5 146,424 15/05/2011  14/05/2018

~ USOS 2009 April 2009 © 1940 152,215 30/04/2012  29/04/2019
USOS 2010 -~ April 2010 ‘ - 2455 226,740 19/04/2013  18/04/2020

| USOS 2011 April 2011 - 298.5 8,730  18/04/2014- 17/04/2021
USOS 2012 March 2012 297.0 10,434 29/03/2015  28/03/2022
USOS 2013 March 2013 292.25 26,929 28/03/2016  27/03/2023

The Group did not issue any share options during 2014 and 2015.

A reconciliation of option movements for the USOS is set out below:

2015 2014

Weighted Weighted

. average average

Number of exercise Number exercise

share price of share price

options  (in pence) options  (in pence)

Qutstanding at beginning of the year 810,968 2124 833,920 214.7
Granted during the year : - - L. , -
Forfeited during the year (826) 297.0 (22,952) 298.5
Exercised during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 810,142 2123 810,968 2123

Exercisable at the end of the year 783,213 209.5 - 772,779 208.3
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28.

" The conditional shares outstanding at the year end were as follows:

‘Share based payments (continued).

C. Long-term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP?)

The LTIP is a dlscretlonary share incentive scheme under which the Remuneration Committee of H & T Group
plc can grant ordinary shares at no cost to executive directors and other senior management.

The LTIP operates as conditional shares awarded over a defined.year performance period and subject to
continued employment over a three year period from the date of the grant. Early exercise of the conditional

" shares is permitted if a share award holder ceases to be employed by reason of death, m_|ury, disability,

retirement or sale of his employing company.

The performance condition applicable to the 2013 grant is as follows:

e  The performance period is from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

e The award cannot be exercised unless the percentage growth in the Group’s Profit Before Tax over
the performance period is greater than 22.35% (“the Lower Limit”). ~

e  Ifthe percentage growth in the Group’s Profit Before Tax over the Performance Period is equal to

.or greater than 52% (“the Upper Target), the Award may be exercised‘as to 100% of the Shares
~subject to the Award.

e Ifthe growth in the Group’s Profit Before Tax is between the Lower Limit and the Upper Target-
then the Award may only be exercnsed over such percentage between 0% and 100% of the Shares
subject to the Award (rounded down to the nearest whole number of Shares) as relates to the amount
by which, on a straight line basis, the Lower Target has been exceeded.

Number of -Earliest date

i Grant date shares of exercise
LTIP 2013 : Mar 2013 198,513 28/03/2016

The Group did not issue any conditional shares during 2014 and 2015.

A reconcﬂlatlon of conditional share movements for the LTIP is set out below:

2015 . . 2014

Weighted " Weighted
. average Number average
Number of exercise of - exercise
conditional * price conditional price
shares (in pence) - ' shares (in pence)
Outstanding at beginning of the year 389,010 - 556,858 -
Granted during the year | - - - -
Forfeited during the year : (190,497) - (103,866) -
Exercised during the year - - (63,982) -
Outstanding at the end of the year : ‘ 198,513 - 389,010 -
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29,

Operating lease arrangements

" The Group as lessee :
. . 2015 2014

£000 £000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in

the year 6,693 © 6,643

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows: _

Land and buildings "~ Other
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £°000 £000 £000 -
Within one year 6,098 6,293 76 115
In the second to fifth years inclusive 16,562 17,569 -39 175
After five years 10,474 12,359 N -
33,134 36,221 o115 290

Significant opérating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for rental of store premises. Leases
are normally negotiated for an average term of 10 years at the then prevailing market rate, with a break option

after S years.

The Group also sublets some of the premises above the stores, the outstanding recelpts from which are

lmmaterlal
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30. Notes-to the cash flow statement

Profit for the financial year

Adjustments for:
Investment revenues
Finance costs
Movement in provisions
Tax expense — Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
Depreciation of property, plant and equlpment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment
Share-based payment expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
- Decrease in inventories "
Increase in other current assets
(Increase) / decrease in receivables
(Decrease) / increase in payables

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid -
Interest paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

2015 2014
£000 £2000
5,378 4,255
a1 . 1
679 708
216) 332
1,462 1,255
2.897 3,087
321 383
] 99
104 246
75 181
10,699 10,545
4,469 530
417y (125)
(1,367) 4941
(507) 846
12,877 16,737
(1,160) (1,806)
(508) (558)
11209 14373

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet)
comprise cash at bank and other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of ‘three months or less.
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31.

32.

33.

' For the year ended 31 December 2015

Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on -
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

Transactions with directors are disclosed in the Directors’ Report and note 9. There were no other material
related party transactions during the year.-

Remuneration of key management personnel

- The remuneration of the directors of Harvey & Thompson Limited, the trading subsidiary, who are the key

management personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS
24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’:

2015 2014

£000 .- . £000

Short-term employee benefits . : - 842 , 867
Pension contributions : 57 56
Share-based payments = - s . - ' 95
899 1,018

Capital commitments - ‘

There is no significant capital expenditure authorised and contracted for but not provided in the accounts (2014:
£nil). ‘

Events after the balance sheet date

The directors have proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 of 4.5p (2014: 2.7p) (note
14).

On 12 February 2016 the Group refinanced its credlt facility with Lloyds Bank plc further details can be found
in note 23.
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‘Independent auditor’s report to the members of
H & T Group plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of H&T Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2015
which comprise the Parent company balance sheet, the Parent company combined reconciliation of movements in
shareholders’ funds and statement of movement on reserves and the related notes A to G. The financial reporting
- framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility
is to audit and express an opinion on the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately .disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us'in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware
of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of its loss for the
year then ended;

e _have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the ﬁnanmal year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the parent company financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if; in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Other matters

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of H & T Group plc for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Robert Knight (Senior Statutory Auditor) /

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Crawley, United Kingdom '

.2 March 2016
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Parent company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015
2015 2014
Note £°000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments : C 1,479 1,375
1,479 1,375
Current assets
Receivables D 61,587 61,587
Cash at bank and in hand . 46 46
161,633 61,633
Liabilities: amounts falling due within-one-year—~—-—----E - -— 1 8;707')”":"“" (16;306) """
Net current assets A 42,926 45,327
Total assets less current liabilities 4 ‘ 44 405 46,702
Net assets 44,405 46,702
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital F 1,843 1,843
Share premium account , 25,409 25,409
Employee Benefit Trust shares reserve : (35) 35)
Share option reserve 1,479 1,375
Profit and loss account ' ’ 15,709 18,110
Total shareholders’ funds _. 44 405 46,702

The financial statements of H & T Group plc, registered number 05188117, were approved by the Board of directors
and authorised for issue on 2 March 2016. :

Sig \'e'o' on behalf of the Board of Directors by:
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Parent company combined reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
and statement of movements on reserves
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 ‘ . . Employee. .
. Called up Share benefit Share Profit
share premium trust shares option and loss . 2015
. capital account reserve reserves account Total
Company ’ Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January X : C 1,843 25,409 (35) 1,375 - 18,110 46,702
Loss for the financial year - - - - (1 16) (116)
Dividend paid : - - - - -(2,285) (2,285)
Issue of share capital F - - - - - -
Employee Benefit Trust shares ‘ - - - 104 -~ S 104
Share option credit taken directly to )
equity - - - - - -
At 31 December 1,843 - 25,409 (35) 1,479 15;709 44,405
2014 A Employee
Called up Share benefit Share Profit
share premium trust shares option and loss 2014
capital account reserve reserves account Total
Company Note £°000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 1,843 25,409 (38) 1,129 20,055 48,398
Loss for the financial year - - - - . (176) (176)
Dividend paid - - - - (1,769) (1,769)
Issue of share capital ' F - - oo - - -
Employee Benefit Trust shares - - : 3 - - 3
Share option credit taken directly to
equity ) k - - - 246 ) - 246
At 31 December . 1,843 ‘ 25,409 (35) 1,375 18,110 46,702
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A.

Accounting policies

. Basis of preparatmn

H&T Group Plcis a company mcorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act. The address of

the registered office is given on page 24. The nature of the company’s operations and its principal activities

are set out in the business review on pages 4 to 5.

“The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100)

issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Accordingly, in the year ended 31 December 2015 the company
has changed its accounting framework from UK GAAP to FRS 101 as issued by the Financial Reporting
Council and has, in doing so, applied the requirements of IFRS 1.6-33 and related appendices. These financial

- statements were prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting Standard 101) ‘Reduced

Disclosure Framework’ as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the goods and services. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

These financial statements are separate financial statements. The company is exempt from the prebaration of
consolidated financial statements, because it is included in the Group financial statements of H&T Group plc.

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that
standard in relation to business combinations, share-based payment, non-current assets held for sale, financial
instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets,
presentation of a cash-flow statement, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and related party
transactions. Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Group financial statements of H&T Group
plc. The Group financial statements of H&T Group plc are available to the public.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as discussed in the Directors’ Report.

The particular aécounting policies adopted are described below.

Taxation

Current UK corporation tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Where tax losses are

" surrendered to, or received from, group companies, the amount received/surrendered is charged/credited to the

profit and loss account and treated as payable to/receivable from the related group party that has
surrendered/received the losses.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a
right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences
between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the -
inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in
the financial statements.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only to the extent that, on the basis
of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits
from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Investments

Fixed assets investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment.
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A.

Accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

" Dividends

Dividends receivable from subsidiary undertakings are recorded in the profit and loss account on the date that
the dividend becomes a binding liability on the subsidiary company. Under the terms of IFRS 3 ‘Business

" Combinations’; the Company records dividends arising from pre-acquisition profit and loss reserves of its

subsidiary undertakmg in the profit and loss account and considers whether the distribution affects the carrying
value of the investment in the subSldlary undertakmg

Dividends payable are recorded as a distribution from retained earnings in the period in which they become a’
binding liability on the Company.

Share options o :

The Company’s trading subsidiary, Harvey & Thompson Limited issues share options to employees in that
Company, which are equity settled in shares of H & T Group plc. Harvey & Thompson Limited determines the
fair value of the options granted measured at the date of grant by use of a Black-Scholes model or a Stochastic
model dependmg on the vesting conditions attached to each scheme. This fair value cost of equity-settled
awards is recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period in the financial statements of Harvey &
Thompson Limited, based on the estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of any

“non market-based vesting conditions.

The Company receives a payment each period, equal to the annual expense recorded in Harvey & Thompson
Limited calculated on the basis described above. This amount is credited to the profit and loss account each
period and is treated in a similar manner to a distribution of dividends from Group companies.

- Company profit and loss account

No profit and loss account is presented for the parent company pursuant to section 408 of Companies Act 2006.
The Company made a loss after taxation of £116,000 in 2015 (2014: loss of £176,000). '

The auditor’s remuneration for the current and preceding financial years is borne by a subsidiary undertaking,
Harvey & Thompson Limited. Note 8 to the Group financial statements discloses the amount paid in respect

of the Company.

The directors did not receive any emoluments for their services to the company (2014: £nil). Other than the
directors, the Company has no employees in either financial year.
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C. Investments

Shares in subsidiary undertakings ’ o ~ Total

: : C £000

_ Cost ' ‘

At 1 January 2014 S : ' 1,129
Additions . ’ : 246
At 1 January 2015 - : : 1,375
Additions ) » ' ’ 104
At 31 December 2015 : ‘ _ - 1,479

Within the cost at 1 January 2015 includes cost of shares in subsidiary undertakings of £1.

Additions in the year represent capital contributions in relation to share options issued to employees. Please
refer to note 28 on page 82.

The investments in Group companies which are all included in the consolidated fi nancnal statements are as

follows:
Country of Proportlon. of ordinary Principal
Name of company incorporation shares held : , Activity
Directly Indirectly
- H & T Finance Limited - Great Britain 100% - » Management of finance
Harvey & Thompson Limited  Great Britain - - 100% Pawnbroking, jewellefy

sales, gold purchasing,
unsecured lending, cheque
cashing and related
services

The Company owns directly or indirectly 100% of the voting rights in all subsndlary undertakmgs H&T
Group Plc is also incorporated in Great Britain.

D. Receivables

2015 2014
£000 £000
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies : ' 61,565 61 ,565
Prepayments and accrued income’ ‘ ‘ 22 22
61,587 61,587

E. Liabilities: amounts falling due within one year ,
2015 2014
£000 £000
Amounts owed to subsidiary companies 18,479 16,121
Accruals and deferred income 228 185
18,707 16,306

F. Called Up Share ca.pital

Please refer to the Group financial statements of H & T Group plc for details of share capital mcludmg shares
lssued in the year (note 27), and dividends pald and proposed (notes 14 and 33).
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G.  Explanation of transition to FRS 101

This is the first year that the Company has presented its financial statements under FRS 101 (Financial
Reporting Standard 101) issued by the Financial Reporting Council. The last financial.statements under a
previous GAAP (UK GAAP) were for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the date of transition to FRS 101
was therefore 1 January 2014. There were no adjustments to be made on transition to FRS 101. ‘
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